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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHORE

* k% &

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
Case No,: CR18-1142

v,
Dept. No,: D08

TYLER NIED,
Defendant.

/

felony, (53896) in the manner following, to wit:

AMENDED INFORMATION

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS, District Attorney within and for the
County of Washoe, State of Nevada, in the name and by the authority
of the State of Nevada, informs the above entitled Court that TYLER
NIED, the defendant above-named, has committed the crime(s) of:

RECKLESS DRIVING RESULTING IN DEATH OR SUBSTANTTIAL BODILY

HARM TO ANOTHER PERSON a violation of NRS 484B,653(6), a category B

That the said defendant on or about the 13th day of May,
2017, at Reno Township, within the County of Washoe, State of Nevada,
did willfully, unlawfully and recklessly drive a White Jeep upon West

4th Street, a public street in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada,
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in willful and wanton disregard of the safety of persons and

property, which act of driving and neglect of duty proximately caused

substantial body harm to ALHASSAN NEFGA and PATRICK HOLT,

All of which is contrary to the form of the Statute in such

case made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of the

State of Nevada.

CHRISTOPHER J. HICKS
District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

By:/s/Kevin Naughton

2

KEVIN NAUGHTON
12834
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY
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The following are the names and addresses of such witnesses
as are known to me at the time of the filing of the within

Information:

RENO POLICE DEPARTMENT
CHRISTOPHER A, GOOD
SCOTT NELSON

ROBERT STOCKWELIL
THOMAS ALAKSA

CHRIS ROSE

SETH FEATHERS

BRYAN SANCHEZ

VINCENT ROBLES

NEVADA HIGHWAY PATROL
ALYSSA HOWALD

JOSEPH TEIXEIRA
MATTHEW THOMPSON

ALHASSAN NEFGA

PATRICK HOLT, 1331 RALSTON STREET RENO, NV 89502,

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The party executing this document hereby affirms that this
document submitted for recording does not contain the social security

number of any person or persons pursuant to NRS 239B.030,

CHRISTOPHER J, HICKS
District Attorney
Washoe County, Nevada

By:/s/Kevin Naughton
KEVIN NAUGHTON
12834
DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY

PCN: RPD0016984C; RPD0O016985C-NIED

3
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA,

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

* % %
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintif¥f,
Case No. CR18-1142
V.
. Dept. No, D08
TYLER NIED,
Defendant.
/

GUILTY PLEA MEMORANDUM

1. I, TYLER NIED, understand that I am charged with the
offense of: RECKLESS DRIVING RESULTING IN DEATH OR SUBSTANTIAL BODILY
HARM TO ANOTHER PERSON a violation of NRS 484B,653(6), a category B
felony.

2. I desire to enter a plea of guilty to the offense of
RECKLESS DRIVING RESULTING IN DEATH OR SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM TO
ANOTHER PERSON a violation of NRS 484B.653(6), a category B felony,
as more fully alleged in the charge filed against me.

3. By entering my plea of guilty I know and understand
that I am waiving the following constitutional rights:

A. I waive my privilege against self-incrimination.

APP.0004




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

B. I waive my right to trial by jury, at which trial the

State would have to prove my guilt of all elements of the offenses

beyond a reasonable doubt.

C. I waive my right to confront my accusers, that 1s, the

right to confront and cross examine all witnesses who would testify

at trial.

D. I waive my right to subpoena witnesses for trial on my

behalf,

4. I understand the charge against me and that the
elements of the offense‘which the State would have to prove beyond a
reasonable doubt at trial are that on May 13th, 2017, or thereabout,
in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, I did, willfully,
unlawfully and recklessly drive a White Jeep upon West 4th Street, a
public street in the County of Washoe, State of Nevada, in willful
and wanton disregard of the safety of persons and property, which act
of driving and neglect of duty proximately caused substantial body
harm to ALHASSAN NEFGA and PATRICK HOLT.

5. I understand that I édmit the facts which suppbrt all
the elements of the offense by pleading guilty. I admit that the
State possesses sufficlent evidence which would result in my
conviction, I have considered and discussed all possible defenses
and defense strategies with my counsel. I understand that I have the
right to appeal from adverse rulings on pretrial motions only 1if the
State and the Court consent to my right to appeal in a separate

written agreement. I understand that any substantive or procedural

/17
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pretrial issue(s) which could have been raised at trial are walved by
my plea. .

6. I understand that the consequences of my plea of guilty
are that I may be imprisoned for a period of 1 to 6 years in the
Nevada State Department of Corrections. I am eligible for probation.
I must also be fined a minimum of $2,000 up to a maximum of $5,000.

7. In exchange for my plea of guilty, the State, my
counsel and I have agreed to recommend the following: The State will
not file additional criminal charges resulting from the arrest in
this case. The parties will be free to argue for an appropriate

sentence.

8. I understand that, even though the State and I have
reached this plea agreement, the State is reserving the right to
present arguments, facts, and/or witnesses at sentencing in support

of the plea agreement.

9. I also agree that I will make full restitution in this
matter, as determined by the Court. Where applicable, I additionally
undéfétand and agfeé that fu;iil be reépdﬁsible for thé repayment of
any costs incurred by the State or County in securing my return to
this jurisdiction.

10. I understand that the State, at their discretion, is
entitled to either withdraw from this agreement and proceed with the
prosecution of the original charges or be'free to argue for an
appropriate sentence at the time of sentencing if I fail to appear at
any scheduled proceeding in this matter OR if prior to the date of my

sentencing I am arrested in any jurisdiction for a violation of law

APP.0006




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
"18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

OR if I have misrepresented my prior criminal history, I understand
and agree that the occurrence of any of these acts constitutes a
material breach of my plea agreement with the State. I further
understand and agree that by the execution of this agreement, I am
walving any right I may have to remand this matter to Justice Court
should I later withdraw my plea.

11. I understand and agree that pursuant to the terms of
the plea agreement stated herein, any counts which are to be
dismissed and any other cases charged or uncharged which are either
to be dismissed or not pursued by the State, may be considered by the
court at the time of my sentencing.

12, I understand that the Court is not bound by the
agreement of the parties and that the matter of sentencing is to be
determined solely by the Couxt. I have discussed the charges, the
facts and the possgible defenses with my attorney. All of the
foregoing rights, waiver of rights, elements, possible penalties, and
consequences, have been carefully expléined to me by my attorney. My

Tagtoﬁney.hasvnot promiséd‘me anything.ﬁog mentidgéa in this plea
memorandum, and, in particular, my attorney has not promised that I
will get any specific sentence. I am satisfied with my counsel's
advice and representation leading to this resolution of my case. I
am aware that i1f I am not satisfied with my counsel I should advise
the Court at'this time, I believe that entering my plea is iﬁ my
best interest and that going to trial is not in my best iInterest. My

attorney has advised me that if I wish to appeal, any appeal, if

/17
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applicable to my case, must be filed within thirty days of my
sentence and/or judgment.

13. I understand that this plea and resulting conviction
will likely have adverse effects upon my residency in this country if
I am EQE'a U. 8. Citizen. I have discussed the effects my plea will
have upon my residency with my counsel.

14, T offer my plea freely, voluntarily, knowingly and
with full understanding of all matters set forth in the Information
and in this Plea Memorandum. I have read this plea memorandum
completely and I understand everything contained within it.

15. My plea of guilty is voluntary and is not the result
of any threats, coercion or promises of leniency.

16. I am signing this Plea Memorandum voluntarily with
advice of counsel, under no duress, coercion, or promises of
leniency,

/17
/77
/17
7/
/77
/17
7/
/17
11/
/17
/17
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17. I do hereby sQear under penalty of perjury that all of

the assertions in this written plea agreement document are true,

AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TQ NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding

document does not contain the social security number of any person.

DATED this Lg day of /?(/./(b Y , 2o ®

DEFENDANT

TRANSLATOR/INTERPRETER

Attorney DW Defendant's Signature
Prosecutl torney

APP.0009
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Tyler Chase Nied
CCi: CR18-1142

IIL DEFENDANT INFORMATION

Address: 1611 North Virginia Street #49 I'BY; 8CTX3CIWN
City/State/Zip: Reno, NV 89503 SID: NV04579029

NV Resident: Yes Aliasest Nied, Tyler C; Nied, Tyler
SSN :P Additional 8SNs: None

POB: Reno, NV Additional DOBs: None

Date of Bivth:Wiiiivo7 Alien Registration: N/A

Age: 21 US Citizen: Yes
Phone:” Notification Required pex NRS 630,307: N/A
Driver’s License: 0804604414

State: Nevada

Status: Valid

Identifiers:

Sex: Male Race: White Height: 57 Weight: 140

Hair: Brown Eyes: Green

Scars: Right elbow:! 4" surgical (verified 12/11/18)
Tattoos (type and location): None reportad

Social History: The following social history is as related by the defendant and is unverified unless
otherwise noted:

Childhood/Family: The defendant reported his parents divorced when he was less than a year old. He resided
back and forth with both parents and moved from state to state. Both parents abused alcohol. He denied any
“Social Services involvement, He reported his family has been supportive since the Instant Offense,

Marital Status: Single
- Children: None reported

Custody Status of Children: N/A

Monthly Child Support Obligation: N/A

Employment Status: The defendant is employed at Eclipse Plzza working as “pizza chef” and cashier,
Numbey of Months Employed Full Time in 12 months Prior fo commission of Instant Offense: 10

Age at first arrest: 19 or younger 20-23[] 24 or older [ ]

Income: $1,000 per month Other Sources; None

Assets: Vehicle: $5,000

Debts: Credit cards; $500; Medical: Unknown

Edueation: The defendant is a Reno High School graduate. He completed a half year of college at the
University of Nevada Reno,

APP.0011
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Lyler Chase Nied
CCil: CR18-1142

DIEFENDANT INFORMATION (Continued)

Military Sexvice: N/A

Health and Medical istory: The defendant reported gond health without any present or past serious,
chronic diseases or llnesses, or any disabling medical problems.

Mental Health History: The defendant reported has been diagnosed with Insomnia, Depression, Anxiety, and
Post Traumatic Stress Disorder. He was prescribed Trazadone and Lexapro; however, he has stopped taking
his medication in October 2018, He Indicated “At some points” had thoughts aboul suicide when he feels
depressed; however, he has never attempted it,

The defendant attended Sovereign Health of California and BLVD Treatment Centers in 2017 and 2018 for
mental health counseling.

Gambling History: None reported
Substance Abuse Histovy:

Alcohol: From age 15 through April 2017, once per week use.
Marijuana; From age 16 until age 18, occasional use, From age 18 through Instant Offense, daily use.

LSD/Acid: At age 19, approximately three times,

The defendant completed Sovereign Health of California and BLVD Treatment Centers in 2017 and 2018 for
his substance abuse. He Is currently attending alcohol and drug abuse counseling, once a week,

Gang Activity/Affiliation: None reported
1V, CRIMINAL RECORD

Criminal history records obtained by the Division reflect the following information:

CONVICTIONS- 0 FEL: 0 GM: 0 MISD: 0
INCARCERATIONS-0 PRISON: 0 JAIL: 0

SUPERVISION HISTORY:

CURRENT- Probation Terms: 0 Parole Terms: 0

PRIOR TERMS:

Probation-0 Revoked: 0 Discharged:  Honorable: 0 Other: 0
Parole- 0 Revoked: 0 Discharged:  Honorable: 0 Other: 0

APP.0012



" PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION RipoRT "
Tyler Chase Nied
CCk CR18-1142
CRIMINAL RECORD (Continued)
Adult:
Axrrest Date: Offense: Disposition:
5/14/17 Duty to Stop at Scene of Accldent CR18-1142, Instant Offense
Rerno, NV Causing Bodily Injury (F) 5/18/1'1; Released on bail
PD

Driving History: According to records of the Nevada Department of Motor Vehicles, the defendant’s driving
history contains the following information;

CONVICTION DATE OFIENSE
417116 01-10 > Speed Limit
5/3/17 01-10 > Speed Limit

Summary: Convlctions: 2 Withdrawals: 1 Schools; 0 Accidents: 0

V. OFFENSE SYNOPSIS

':Records provided by the arresting agency and the prosecuting agency reflect that the instant offense occurred
substantially as follows:

On May 13, 2017, officers with the Reno Police Department responded to a report of a vehicle versus a
pedestrian (victim #1) aceident at 10;56pm, Approximately two minutes Inter, officers observed the defendant,
Tyler Chase Nied driving his vehicle the wrong way, The officers attempted to affect a traffic stop wherein the
defendant failed to yield and quickly accelerated, running two red lights through the streets of downtown
Reno. The pursuit was discontinued for to safety reasons.

A short time later, the defendant’s vehicle became involved in a rollover accident, hilting an occupied vehicle
(victim #2), Upon police arrival, the defendant had already fled the scens, A witness provided a physical
description of the defendant. REMSA arrived and transported the victim to Renown Medical Center. Police
Incated the defendant walking shirtless, unsteady on his feet and had blood on his arm. Also observed were
scratches and blood coming from his ear and chest, The officer asked the defendant why he left the scene of
the accident and the defendant stated, “I just couldn’t stay there any longer." REMSA arrived and transported
the defendant to Renown Medical Center.

At the hospital, an officer interviewed the defendant and stated he smoked marijuana the day before and while
driving too fast and ran over the foot of victim #1, He stated he drove away and a short time later he crashed

into a van, vietim #2,

The officers also learned that the victim #2 was unconscious and intubated and suffered a broken pelvis, face
and head trauma causing minor brain bleed, Victim #1 had a laceration to his leg and head that cavsed a minor

brain bleed but was not life threating,

APP.0013
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* PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION RipORE """

Tyler Chase Nied
CCih CR18-1142

OFFENSE SYNOPSIS (Continned)

The defendant submitted to a blood draw and was medically cleared, He was arrested, and transported to the
Washoe County Jall and booked accordingly, '

According to a Washoe County Sheriffs Office Forensic Sclence Division report dated May 25, 2017, the
blood tested positive for 11-nos-9-carboxy-THC (Marijuana Metabolite) 6.4ng/m. 1.3 ng/mL.

YL DEFENDANT’S STATEMENT

I] See Attached Defendant interviewed, statement submitted || Defendant not interviewed

The defendant was interviewed by the Division on December 11, 2018 at the Washoe County Jail. He was

apprised of his criminal history and agreed with its contents, When asked about the iustant offense, the
defendant reported he did not sleep for approximately five days prior. He smoked matijuana earlier in the day
and was hallucinating, By the evening, he began to drive downtown and stated, "It didn’t feel real, kind of like
a video game,” He remembers hearing sirens, then crashing and running from the scene; however, he did not
comprehend as to why he was being arrested. With respect Lo sentencing, the defendant is hoping for
Diverslon. He plans to continue his counseling, working, and going back to school,

YIL, VICTIM INFORMATIONISTATEMENT

V2258587, Vietim #1; Although the Division attempted to contact the victim by mail to ascertain financial
loss (if any,) and obtain thoughts on sentencing, the requested information has not been received. If any
additional information is received by the Division, it will be provided to the Court at sentencing. No medical
records were located in the District Attorney’s file. Loss: $0.00

VC2258586, Victim #2: The vietim provided a Medical Bill Summary, totaling $459,147.26, A Vietim
Impact Statement was also provided and has been attached to this report, The vietim plans to address the Court
at the time of sentencing, The defendant’s insurance paid a settlement of $50,000, He received a settlement
$25,000 for Underinsured Motorist Claim and $4,678.33 Vehicle Physical Damage payout totaling $79,678.33
from his insurance,

Medical records indicate that the victim suffered a Traumatic Subdural Hemorthage with loss of
consclousness of unspecified duration, Initial encounter; Acute Respiratory Failure, unspecified whether with
hypoxia or hypercapnia; Hypo-osmolality and Hyponatrémia; Hemorthuge due to genitourinary prosthetic
devices, implants and grafts; Other Fracture of unspecified Lumbar Vertebra; Laceration of scalp; Laceration
of left lower leg; Contusion of lower back and pelvis; Diffuse Traumatic Brain Injury with Joss of
consciousness of unspecified duration; and Hematurla, unspecified. The victim was in the hospital for
approximately two months and was in a coma for seven days, He wus diagnosed with traumatic brain injury.

Loss $538,825.59

VC2108500: Vietims of Crime: Victim #1 was approved for medical, hospital, and loss wagss clalms. The
tota} amount paid out is $5,393.46, Loss: $5,393,46

Total Loss: $544,219,05
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" PRESENTENCE INVESTIGATION REPORT
Tyler Chase Nied
CCi#: CR18-1142

vl CUSTODY STATUS/CREDIT FOR TIME SERVED

Custody Status: Released on bail CTS: 5/14/17- 5/18/17= 5 days (WC))

IX. PLEA NEGOTIATIONS

In exchange for the defendant’s plea of guilty, the State, the defense and the defendant have agreed to
recommend the following: The State will not file additional criminal charges resulting from the arrest in this
case. The parties will be free to argue for an appropriate sentence. The defendant agress to make full
restitution in this matter, as determined by the Congt,

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on information obtained and provided in this repott, the following recommendations nre submitted.

FEES
Administrative Assessment: $25.00 Chemical/Drug Analysis: N/A IDNA: $150,00 fee
bNA Admin Assessment: $3.00 Attorney I'ees N/A
Domestic Violence Fee: N/A Extradition: N/A Psychosexual Fees N/A
SENTENCE
inimum Term: 12 months aximum Term: 36 months Location: NDOC

Consecutive to/Concurrent Witht N/A [Probation Recommended: No Probation Terms N/A

. ' . andatory Probation/
Fine! $2,000 Restitution: $544,219,05 Fisont No

Pursuant to NRS 239B.030, the undetsigned hereby affirms this document contains the social secnrity
number of a person as required by NRS 176,145,

[T} Pursuant to NRS 239B.030, the undersigned hereby affirms this document does not contain the social
security number of any person,
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Tyler Chase Nied
CCih: CR18-1142

RECOMMENDATIONS (Continued)

Per the Nevada Revised Statutes, any changes to factoal allegations in the Presentence Investigation Report
may be ordered by the cowt within 180 days of the entry of Judgement of Conviction. The prosecuting
attorney and defendant must agree to correct the contents,

"The information used in the Presentence Investigation Report may be utilized reviewed by federal, state and/or
local agencies for the purpose of prison classification, program eligibility and parole consideration,
Respectfully Submitted,

Natalie A, Wood, Chief

Report prepared by: A, Rico Specialist I
DPS Parole and Probation, Specialist

.. %oved by:
’ 'Lﬁaura PappasUqu‘o Tlr(iProbatlon Supetvisor
Yo Sa

Department of Pub Bty
Parole and Probation, Northern Command

AR/p
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DEFENDANT STATEMENT

Write in your own words the cireumstances of your offense, why you committed the oftenae, your present feelings about
your situntion, and why you may be suilable for probation if eligible, A copy ofthis statement will be sent fo the Judge,
Write or print clently, Husing n pencil, please write ns dark ns possible. 1t you do not want to submit o written
statement, still initial that you nokaowledge nlt changes to the PSI must be made prior to sentenoing,
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Per Nevada Supreme Court opinon in Stockmeler v. State, any changes to your Presentence Investigation Report
must be made at or before sentencing, The Information used in your Presentence Investigation Report may be
reviewed by federal, state nnd/or local agenciss and used for future determinations to Include, but not limited to,

parole consideration. TN _ (Defendant initinls)

Signature Sroad Date V2~ =1
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i Page 2 . 8 6‘?
Vielim Impact Statement \) (/ZZ 2 (47

PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW YOU WERE IMPACTED BY THIS CRIME — Note extent of injuries, property
darnage or Joss, physical disabilities, funeral expenses or psychological/adjustment problems, Attach documentation
(Le. estimales, insurance clatms, medical bills, invoices, receipts, etc.), You may use the back of this page or atlach
additional pages for your comments,

Dee ATTAAHED

(5208 Revised (671212 MG .
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PLEASE DESCRIBE HOW YOU WERE IMPACTED 8Y THIS CRIME:

I have requested that my mather hefp with the preparation and submission of this (etter since 1 stil
struggle with putting my thoughts together, After the accldent } was unconsclods and admitted to
Renown Hospital as a John Do, My Identification was not turned In at the time of the accldent; so, the
hospital had no way to Identlfy e, My famlly had no Idea as to what had happened to me and
thankfully, my wife pursued getting Information from the Reno Pollce Department. Upon stopping a
unit that was golhg thraugh our neighbarhood, she was able to ask'a Police Qfficer if he could glve her
any additlonal Information. During her conversation with this officer, another unit pulled up and the
offlcer walked over to find out what was happening. He overheard the conversation and realized, he
was the officer that responded to the accldent, He told my wite, G, he could take her to where |
was,

Iwas In a coma for 7 days. My family was given little hope as to my recovery and / or my abllity to walk,
talk, return to work, or malfitaln a'normal life style. | was diagnosed as sustalning A traumatic brain
Injury. After coming out of the coma, | remained In Renown Hosgpital for approximately two months. |
was facing a long road of rehabllitation. After being released from Renown Hospital, | was admitted to
the Renown Rehabllitation faclity. | was there approxiniately 6 weeks. It was here that | recelved the
greatastamaling of rehabllitation, They worked with me to regain use of the right side of my bady, as |
lost alf ability to move that side of my body. The staff also worked with me to regaln my speech and
walking. Upon beipg released from the Renown Rehabifitation facllity, | continued to receive rehab
therapy through Rehab Without Walls for an additional 6 weeks, | still am numb and weak on the right
slde of my body, which hinders me writing normal, 1 still struggle with everyday tasks and walk with a
fimp. This has also affected my asbllity to have Intimacy with my wife. To date, | stillam unable to drive
anhd have not been released to operate a forklift so that | &m able to return to the job | had before the

accidant,

After the accident, | was unable to return ta work untll the end of September. | could anly return to
work for 10 hours a week. Almost one year after the accldent, { had worked back up to working 30
hours a wesk. Iwas struggling a lot with depresslon and the fact that | was not the same as | was before
the accident, On the anniversary date of the accident, I trled to take my life, 1 was frustrated, depressed
and felt | had hothing to life for any longer, My family's financlal status was In the tollet and we were
struggling just to pay the rent. Fortunately, my brotherin-law found me passed aut and called an

ambulance,

Once again, | was trapsported to Renown Hospltal, The staff was able to treat me on time and | was
able to recover, | was In Renown for approximately 2 weeks, After that, | was transported to Reno
Bahavloral Center, 1 was only able to stay there for approximately 1 month, because my insurance
would no longer cover the expenses. [t was thelr psychiatrlst’s recommendstion that | be admitted Into
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Nevada Community Enrfthment Program in Las Vegas. Unfortunately, my Insurance would not approve
this stay, so | was not able to receive this treatment.

Today, | continie to recalve counsellfng, | am also finally able to meet with the medical staff that can
help me. Recently, | was sesn by an Ocular-Neurologlst, as | still have double-vision. tam scheduled to
meet with a Neurologist and & Psychlatrlst In November, | have baen on medication since | was
discharged fram Reno Behavioral Center without any follow-up checks. That concerns me and my family

greatly.

It seems that |am now finally able to racelve the medical care that | have needed all along,
Unfortunately, | was never refarred to the right professionals to assist me through the transition of the
changes In my abllity to provide for my family and function. Because of nat having thls cara, | sank
furthar and further Into depression and anger,

From a financlal standpolnt, the loss of my income has been devastating. | have three children and my
wife was the only one with an Income. This has been a great struggle. Tyler's Insurance pald his policy
Itmit of $50,000 and my Insurance paid out on underiniured insurance at $25,000, That was eaten up
right away with medical expenses and the 0% 1 had to pay to my attorney to help keep flens from being
placed agalnst my wife and me. | have attached my medical expenses, which amounted to just about
$600,000 for the first hospltalization, Fortunately, [ have a great employer and Insurance company, who
stapped up to the plate and took care of most of these nsurance expanses.

wanted to make sura this letter was provided to you but | will be submitting the medical records under
separate cover. The second hospitalization has been qut of pocket.and my employer’s insurance, |am
in the process of getting all the supporting expense documentation and will submit thal upan racelpt,

My vehicle was totaled and was our only family vehlcla, We recelved a settlement In the amount of
$4,678,33, | have listed that Information under the Insurance Claim Information section,

Insurance Claim Information
State Farm Insurance, PO Box 106170, Atlanta, GA 30348-6170, (B44) 292-8615, Claim #28-0119-51.7,

Polfcy #0632-517-28A, Sattlement: $25,000 Underinsured Motorist Clalm,

Stata Farm Insurance, PO Box 52250, Phaenix, AZ 850722250, {855) 231-15990, Ext: 712, Clalm H28-
0119-517, Pallcy H0632-517-28A, Settlement $4,678,33 Vehlicle Physical Damage,

Progressive Insurarice Company, PO Box 26747, Richmond, VA 23261, (800} 776-4747, Clalm #17-
1628827, Policy # - Nat Avallable, Settlement $50,000 Bodily Injury Clalm,

APP.0020



Fuge Lof1 10/09/2018
203600
f MEDICAL BILLS SUMMARY |
ROVIDER TREATMENT DATES BILL AMOUNT
I Norlem Nevadw Emergenoy Physialang 05/13/2M17 1o 051132017 $1,612,00
2 REMSA 05/13/2017 10 05713/2017 $1,110,00
3 Sierra Nenrosurgery Group 051312017  to 06/02/2017 $5,913.00
4  Renown 05/13/2017 1o 07/14/2017 $436,572.81
5 Pacifio Medicul, Ino, 05/14/2017 10 05/14/2017 $335.00
6  Reno Radiologionl Assaclales, Chid, 051472017 1o 06/09/2017 $3,841.45
7 Premiere Surgloel Spechlists 05/14/2017 1o 06/13/.2017 $4,284.00
8 Rehab Without Walls, Ine, 071712017 1o 072372017 54,830.00
9 Renown Medloal Group 07/2412017  to 080372017 $649.00
TOTAL MEDICAY, BILLS TO DATE: $459,147.26
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Brinn Sandayal

Governor

Jnmes M, Wright
Direvtar

Natalic Wood
Chief

December 12, 2018

PROBATION SUCCESS PROBABILITY (PSP) SCORE

Offender: NIED, TYLER Offensa Score Totak: as

PSIH: 855572 Soeial Score Totals 26

BIN # 1004737304 Raw Scare Total: 29

Cageth CR18-1142 Total PSP Scors: 61

Prior Criminal Historys

Felony Canvictions: 1= None Jull Sentences: 2 = None
Misdemeanor Convictions: 2 = None Juvenlle Commihments: 2 = None/or over 24
‘Pending, unrelated casest 2= Nobe Yenrs free of Cony 4= Over §
Subsequent Crim Hist: 2= None Priox Formal Supry; 2= None

Prior Incarcerations: 3=Nonae Criminal Patterns 2 = None/No Record
‘Pr'g§eug Offense:

-bl_rwmstancw of Arrestt 0= Reslstive Sophistieation/Premedlintions 1= Moderate
Type of Olfenses ~1 = Multlpte person (to 2) Plea Bargain Benefits: 1 =Somewhat
Lsych or Medleal Impaci: 0 = Disalllity Financinl Impact: 0= Excesyive
"Wenpan: 3=N/A CoOffender: 0 = Leader/Cporeed Others or NONI

3= N/A Motive: 0= Dellberate

C{dnfrollcd Substancest

Raw Score x 1,2 = Offense Score Total: 35

‘Sbial History:

Age:
BEmployment/Program;
\Flnanclaly

Employability:

’-:.I”"r;! Sentence Aldustment:

Comm{fment/Tles:
Program Participation:
Honesty/Cooperation:
Attitude/Supervision:

1= Under 25 Famlly Situation: 2 = Moderately Supportivi
4= Continvous/Honsewlfe/Mental Henlth Education; 2= High School/GED/Va-
2= Could be developed Milltary: 1= Hon Discharge/No Mil

2= Rendily/Not Needed/Montal Hoalth

2 = Loca)/lu State Resource Avallubility: 2= Avallable

%= Completad Substance Drug: ~2 = Serlous Abuser/Addict
2= Candid Substanee Aleohol: 2= Problematie

2 = Positive Attitade/Offense: 2= Contrite

Soclal Score Total: 26

Offense Score + Social Score = PSP TOTAL SCORE: 61
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Felony

Defendant's Name:
CT: 1 Offense: Reckless Driving Result Death SBH to anothe NRS§:484B.653 (6)

o +

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFET'Y

DIVISION OF PAROLE AND PROBATION

Tyler Chase Nied

SENTENCE RECOMMENDATION SELECTION ScaLy [ GM

CC# CRIB-L142

Category:B

Rec: 12-36 months NDOG, suspended, Prob Only Non Probation
C’I‘:M Offense: NRS: T Categ(my:h_~
Rec: Prob Only Non Probation
CT’M Offense: NRS; T Category: )
Rec: Prob Only Non Probation T
CT: __ Offense: NRS: T Category:__‘_
Rec; Prob Only Non Probation
CT Offense: NRS; T CategoFyT:
Rec;ﬁwq Prob Only Non Probation
PSP TOTAL SCORE: 61 0-54=Denlal [7] B5-64 = Borderline 65-100 = Probation []

DEVIATION JUSTIFICATION: Into ORt Out to Probation

(] tn/Prison

[] Out/Probaton

Raw Score (Offense): 29 (PSPRA

W SCORR from the OFFENSE Section, Used to determine SENTENCE RECOMMENDATION In the
mutrlx below. Ex:a Raw Score of 37 would solect from the LOW-MEDIUM eoluinn)

Diverston Recommended; (Checkone)i 453 [ ] 458 [] Veterans [7] Mental Health [7] Other [7]

APP.0023

SENTENCE STRUCTURE CATEGORY LOW RANGR LOW-MEDIUM | MEDIUM RANGE MEDIUM ~ HIGH MAXIMUM
Score 39.49 28-98 17427 616 55 (orless)
364 days Ftotars to Justify greater sentence: Prior criminal istory, inem to vislim, Issies can be addressed vin probafion,
| Bogln sentence considaration Gross restitulion wil be ordered
abmidpoint six munth sentenco | Misdamennor | vretors to Justify lessur sentenioe and/or fine only: Minfawl/an financln) loss; minlmnbno prior eimingl history, age of
and adjust based on factors (G offendur, out ol siate offender, yo Issues to he eddressed vjn prabation, finte fn custody pribe o senlencing, contemplated
.| doltnonted In plea nepolintions
. Category £ " g X . 3

1~ 4years Catgporyp__| 1230 months [ || t2-3zmonths [ 1234 months [ || 1248 months ] [l 29-48 months [

1.5 years Cutegory C | 42-92months [] || 12-34 months [ || 12-36 months  [7] (| 18-60 monthis [ || 24-60 months 1
1-6years CategoryB | 12-36months [ || 12-36 manths [7] || 12-48 months [ || 2472 months [ || 26872 months [7)

1- 10 years Category B | 12-36 months (] || 1248 wonths [ || 1672 months [ || 36-120 months [Z] {48420 months [}

1~18 years Eﬁg::i"e‘%glt 12-4@months [7] || 24-60 months [} | 3696 months [~ ] 48-180 months [ | 60-180 months []

2 -10 yearg Category B 24-60 months [:] 2B8-72 months [:] 32-84 months [] 36-120 inonths [:] 48120 months [:]

215 yaars Category B | 24-72 months [ ] || 32-84months 7] || 96+120 months [ §48-180 months {1 1l 66-180 months I

8- 10years Category B | 86-00 months  [_] [| 40100 months ] || 42- 110months [] j44-120months [7] || 48120 months 0

3-18 years Category ft 36-96 months [] [|42-120 months [ 7] || 48-120 months 1 { 60-100 months 7] || 72180 months N

5 - 15 years Category B 1 60-150 months [] || 64-162 months [] || 68-174 months [ || 72-180 months [ I} 72-180 mouths []

1~ 20years CategoryB | 1248 months [] || 18-96 manths [ || 24120 months [T] {36-240 months {1 || 72240 months ]

2 - 20 years CategoryB | 2460 manths [} (| 30-96 months [ 7] [| 36-120 momths [ [|46-240 months [] |84 -240 months 7]

3- 20 years Guegory B | 3672 months [ 42-108 months (1 || 4-144 manths ] || 66-240 months [7] |06 240 months [

5~ 20 yenrs mg‘:{::g{’?,}fni‘w 60-450 months [ ]  64-162 months [7] || 724174 months [7] [|84-240 monens [7] |96 -240 months ]

Category A | Llle/posstbllity of Life/ possthility of b Life with ap
Life \w/or without parel | Andlabiwal | porolonter20 | ] f poralennorzo | || M mm'c W [ |ews '{’;‘:,‘i‘“"” [ | possihiliey of
olfandey years years parale
NPP jSP003 (C) 10/17 \




DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAVETY
DIVISION OX PAROLE AND PROBATION
SENTENCE RECOMMENDATION SELECTION SCALE

Other Areas of Concern: Checl all that apply:

I”] Low Intelligence/Cognitive Difficulties

(] Physical Handicap

[] Reading and Writing Limitations /Significant Learning Disabilitfes
[] Mental Health Issues

[7] Other

IMPORTANT: The factors and areas of cancern {dentified above should not result In a negative Impact when
formulating a sentencing recommendation, If any of these factors apply to an offender, 2 downward sentence
_ deviation towards lenfency may be appropriate,

ANY RECOMMENDATION THAT DEVIATES FROM SUGGESTED SENTENCE MUST INCLUDE JUSTIFICATION
(x) OR()

DEVIATION JUSTIFICATION:

/O‘“ 5187 Dec 12,2018
peclalist CID# Date
Cl’%@ o, . YR
Supervisor ve7 CIb# Date

NPPJSFOO3 (C) 10/17 Page of
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ATTORNEYS AND
COUNSELORS ATLAW

Office: (775) 284-8888 Fax: (775) 2843838
P.0.BOX 62~ RENC. NEVADA 89504

327 CALIFORNIA AVENUE~ RENO, NEVADA 89509

>

ORIA,
LIPHANT

& OSTER L.

F AHRENDORF
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FILED
Efectronically
CR18-1142
2019-01-15 01:37:17 PM
Jacqusline Bryant
Glerk of the Court
Transaction # 7068714 : swilli

2610

Thomas E, Vilosia, Esq,

Nevada Bar No, 003833

FAHRENDOREF, VILORTA,
OLIPHANT & OSTER L.L.P,

P.0. Box 3677

Reno, NV 89505

(775) 348-9999

Attorney for Defendant

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHORE

Ak
THE STATE OF NEVADA -
Plaintiff, Case No, CR18-1142
V8, Dept. No, 8
TYLER NIED,
Defendant,

NOTICE OF OBJECTION TO RESTITUTION AMOUNT IN PSI
' (FILED CONFIDENTIAL)]

COMES NOW, Defendant, Tyler Nied, by and through his attorneys, FAHRENDORF,
VILORIA, OLIPHANT & OSTER L.L.P,, and objeots to the restitution amount of $544,2.19,05,

This Objection js based upon the following Points and Authorities, the PSI and all papets
and pleading on file herein,

DATED this ( 5/ day of January, 2019,

FAHRENDOREF, VILORIA,
OLIPHANT & OSTER L.L.P.

By: @ /% -

Thomas E. Viloria, Bsq.

1008886 w1a
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ATTORNEYS AND

COUNSELORS ATLAW
Office: (775) 284-88%8 Faxx (775) 2843838
P.0.BOX 62~ RENO. NevaDa $9504

327 CALIFORNIA AVENUE~ RENO, NEVADA 89509

3

RIA,
LIPHANT

& OSTER Lo,

F AHRENDORF
VLo

O

=R A T - N & S O L

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

POINTS AND AUTHORITILS

I, Statement of Facts

On May 14, 2017, Defendant Tyler Nied was atrested for charges related to Duty to Stop
at Scene of Accident Causing Bodily Injury. On May 17, 2017, a Complaint alleging two counts
of Leaving the Scene of a Crash Tnvolving Personal Injuty was filed in the Reno Justice Coutt.
On July 20, 2018, an Amended Information was filed charging Reckless Driving Resultiﬁg in
Death or Substantial Bodily Hamm to Another Person, Mr, Nied has entered a Guilty Plea and is
seeking Diversion puwrsuant to NRS 458, .
Victim #1 (Alhassan Nefga) has zero loss, However, Vietims of Crime through the
Division of Parole and Probation is requesting $5,393.46 as Victim #1 was approved for medical,
hospital, and lost wage claims, There is no documeﬁtation to support this amount,

Victim # 2 (Patrick Holt) through the Division of Patole and Probation is re;luesting
$538,825.59. In support a Medloal Bills Summaty totaling $459,147.26 dated 10/09/2018 is
attached to the PSI. In his victim impact statement attached to the PSI, Mz, Holt asserts he had
lost wages, yet there is no documentation relating to the lost wages, He also asserts his medical
bills fotaled $600,000 without any documentation supporting this amount,

M, Holt concedes that he recovered $50,000 from the Defendant’s auto policy and
$25,000 UIM from his own policy for a total of $75,000, but his civil attorney fees and lien
reductions reduced his net recovery by 50%.

More importantly, M1 Holt admits that “I have a great employer and insutance company,
who stepped up to the plate and took care of most of the insurance expenses,” He does state, he
will submit the medical records under separate cover, The second hospitalization has been out of
pocket and my employer’s insurance, I am in the process of getting all of the supporting expense
documentation and will submit that upon yeceipt.”

Thete is no suppotting documentation relating to the medical bills, wage loss and out of
pocket expense.

/11
/1
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II. Discussion

The purpose of testitution in the context of a criminal case is to compensate the victim for
costs driging from a defendants; criminal act, Martinez v, Stare, 120 Nev. 200, 202~2Q3, 88 P.3d,
825, 827 (2004). Vietims’ medical costs for the treatment of their infuries directly resulting from
the crime are the proper subject of restitution, Norwood v. State, 112 Nev. 438, 441, 915 P.2d
277,279 (1996). Crimé victims’ unpaid medical bills are ‘debts of those victims. Id,, 112 Nev, at |
441, 915 P.2d at 279,

| However, the Nevada Supreme Coutt has stated, “[s]entencing courts ate cautioned to
rely on reliable and accurate evidence in setting restitution, An insurance company is not a
victim, Martinez v. State, 115 Nev. 9, 974 P.2d 133 (1999) and NRS 176.015(5)(b). A
defendant’s obligation to pay restitution to a victim may not be reduced because a victim is
reimbursed by an insurance company. 1d., 115 Nev. at 12, 974 P.2d at 134-35, However, in
accordance with Norwood when an insutance company has already paid the medical bills and the
vietim is not awaiting reimbursement, the victim is not entitled to a double recovery, but only the
amount of unpaid medical debts or actual out of pocket expenses. Under the double recovery
doctrine, there can be only one recovery of damages for one wrong or injury, Elyousef . Oreilly
& Ferrario, LLC, 126 Nev, 441, 443, 245 P.3d 547, 549 (2010); see also Mcy'qi' ¥, Sz‘atg, 130
Nev, 657, 333 P,3d 235 (2014)(allowing a District Comt in a ciiminal case to order restitution to
social services to the extent that the district coutt’s order did not ovetlap with the existing [child]
support obligation imposed by the family court),

A defendant is not entitled to a full evidentiary hearing at sentencing regarding
restitution, but he is entitled to challenge restitution sought by the State and may obtain and
present evidenoe to support that challenge,” Martinez, 115 Nev, at i3, 974 P.2d at 135,
Furthermore, the restitution amount must not be based upon the consideration of information or
accusations founded on facts supported by impalpable or highly suspect evidence. Accord,
Lloyd v. State, 94 Nev, 167, 576 P.2d 740 (1978); Silks v, State, 545 P.2d 1159, 1161 (1976).

In the present case none of the undetlying medical bills have been provided, No

documentation from Victims of Crime has been provided. None of the wage loss documentation

1008886 -3~
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has been provided. In addition, the actual amount of out of pocket expenses incurred by the
victims and the amount of remaining unpaid medical bills ate unknown, The proper restitution
amounts are unknown,

The Defendant should only be 1'eq13ired to male restitution for unpaid medical expenses
and lost wages, The victims sl;ould not be awarded restitution for amounts already paid by
health insurance, In addition, the Defendant should receive an offset for the $50,000 received by
Defendant’s auto policy less fees and costs. Bven more troubling is that this court cannot order
restitution based on the insufficient impalpable or highly suspect evidence included in and
attached to the PSI,

111, Conelusion

Based upon the foregoing, Mr, Nied objects to any amount of restitution being ordered

until such time as sufficient documentation is provided to this court and counssl,
AFTIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 2398.030
The undersigned does hereby affitm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person,

DATED this (Z_i day of January, 2019, y
Y

Thomas E. Vilotia, Esq,
Attorney for Defendant

1003886 wth
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), 1 certify that I am an employee of the law firm of]
FAHRENDORF, VILORIA, OLIPHANT & OSTER L.L.P,, and that on the date shown below, I

cavsed service of a true and covrect copy of the attached;

NOTICE OF OBIECTION TO RESTITUTION AMOUNT IN PSI
(FILED CONFIDENTIAL)]

to be completed by electronic service upon electronically filing the within document with the

ATTORNEYS AND
COUNSELORS AT LA

Office: (775)284-8888 Fax: (775)284-3838
P. 0.B0OX 62~ RENO. NEVADA 29504

327 CALIFORNIA AVENUE ~ RENO, NEVADA 89509

ORF,

ILORIA,
LIPHANT

Faurenp
Vv
O
& OSTER Lr».
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10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Second Judicial District Coutt addressed to

KEVIN NAUGHTON, ESQ. for STATE OF NEVADA
DIV. OF PAROLE & PROBATION
and by personal delivery to:
Honorable Barry Breslow
75 Court Street, Dept. 8
Reno, NV 89501

DATED this/S Y day of Januaty, 2019,

Employee of Fahrendorf, Viloria?
Oliphant & Oster L.L.P,

1008486 w5l
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SENTENCING HEARING
CR18-1142 STATE OF NEVADA vs, TYLER CHASE NIED

Deputy District Attorney Kevin Naughton on behalf of the State of Nevada
Thomas Viloria, Esq. on behalf of Tyler Chase Nied

Case No: CRI81142 Dept.No:8  Clerk: M. Copway Date: 1/16/2019

Exhllt No, Party - Description Marked Offered Admltted
Plalntiff - State No
1 of Nevada UMR Clalms Data Totals 1/16/2019 objection 1/16/2019

Print Date: 1/18/2019

APP.0031



t
:

1041472014 HOLT, Palrlek

From: splrilman707 <spiitman707@aol.com>
To: arleo <arlco@dps.state nv.us>
Subject: HOLT, Patrlck
Date: Thu, Ool 11, 2018 5:13 pm
Attachments: UMR Clalms Dala.pdf (267K}, UMR Clalms Data Totals.Xlsx (18K)

Hello Andrew:;

UMR has provided us with the olaims data that Is In thelr system for Patrick, It was prepared In a PDF formal, so | took the
liberly to prepare an excel spreadshest with the totals from each page for your file, This Is the flrst attachment,

The second attachment Is the excel spreadsheet, | also added the attorney fees setilement that were pald out of the
Insurance seltlement checks, That Is the second allachment,

The farnily was also greatly Impacted as a result of this injury, Patriolk's oldest daughter, Destiny, needed to be hospltalized at
Waest Hills due to severs panlo attacks. Thal was an additional expense {he famlly sustalned,

The family continues to meet with a counselor weekly. Those expénses are all out of pocket but we do not have recaipts for
that counseling at this time,

Please let us know If you need any additional informatlon. Also, would you please confirm the court date?
Sinoerely,

Marle Holt (mothsr to Palrick Holt)

o APP.0032
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE
HONORABLE BARRY L. BRESLOW

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
vs. Case No. CR18-1142
TYLER NIED, Department No. 8
. Defendant.
_________________________ /
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
Sentencing
January 16, 2019

APPEARANCES:

For the State: Kevin Naughton
Deputy District Attorney
1 South Sierra Street
Reno, Nevada

For the Defendant: Tom Viloria

Attorney at law
Reno, Nevada
For the Division of
Parole and Probation: Steve Em

Reported by: Isolde Zihn, CCR #87
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RENO, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2019, 11:00 A.M.

THE COURT: Good morning, everyone.
Please be seated.

This i1s the time and place for the sentencing of

Tyler Chase Nied, case number CR18-1142.

Starting with the State, and then the Division, and

then defense counsel, please state your appearances.

MR. NAUGHTON: Good morning, Your Honor.
Kevin Naughton, for the State.

THE CQURT: Hello, Mr. Naughton.

MR. EM: Good morning, Your Honor.

Steve Em, for the Division.

THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. Em.

MR. VILORIA:; Good morning.

Tom Viloria.

Pleasure to be here before you, with Mr. Nied.
THE COURT: Thank you very much,

THE DEFENDANT: Good morning, Your Honor.
Tyler Nied.

THE COURT: Nice to see you.

You may have a seat.

Okay. Time and date for sentencing on what I think

everyone recognizes to be a very tragic situation. Because

before the Court stands -- or will stand shortly -- a
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21l-year-old young man who has no prior criminal history; who
was, as the Court understands it, one of two children,  along
with an older brother, and raised primarily by his mother,
who divorced; who also, as a result of being a single momn,
moved about quite a bit, trying to find her way, which
obviously had an impact on her children: who they become,
who they've become.

The Court is aware that Mr. Nied became é student at
the University of Oregon, and in April of 2017 suffered some
type of mental health event, which resulted in illness to
himself, and treatment; obvious concern by his mother, who
flew up, apparently, to Eugene, to try to help get him
straightened out, which, after a modest amount of care and
treatment, appears fo the Court to have led Mr. Nied to find
his balance again, to a certain level; followed, however,
fairly quickly, by the events in May, 2017, which bring us
here: the very unfortunate events of Mr. Nied driving his
vehicle recklessly under the influence of marijuana, if not
other substances -- well, I'm not aware of any —- and then
injuring two people; one seriously, and the other very, very
seriously.

Mr. Nied was charged with several crimes. As a
result of negotiations, the plea resulted iq Mr., Nied, at

arraignment, pleading guilty to one count, serious count,
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reckless driving resulting in death or substantial bodily
harm to another person, a charge which the Court accepted the
guilty plea; could invoke as a maximum potential sentence up
to six years in prison, eligible for parole not less than one
year. Being a Category B felony, any good-time credits, as
the Court understands, would come off the back end -- the six
years -- and not the front.

So if the Court, at the conclusion of this hearing,
felt it was fair and just to sentence Mrf Nied to adjudicate
him a felon, and then sentence him to the Nevada Department
of Corrections, any amount of time on the front end would
have to be served.

We also have questions with respect to the amount of
restitution due to the victim or victims here. And I'm
well-aware, even befofe I read the objection filed by the
defense to the amount embedded in the presentence
investigation report of the give-or-take $550,000 number or
600,000, the Court was already wonderiﬁg how that would be
approached at today's hearing. Because of the seriousness of

the injuries, the expense, the understandably considerable

expense of the medical care, of the relative lack of

documentation, the question of whether the Court should take
into account payments made by insurance; and, if so, if

that's proper under Nevada law. In other words, why should a
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defendant in a case like this get the benefit of the mere
fact that the person that he or she hurt had health
insurance? Because if the person did not have any health
insurance, wouldn't they be on the hook for the entire
amount? Yes. So why should they get the benefit of the fact
that somebody saw fit to buy and pay for health insurance?
But we'll have that discussion in a few minutes. So we have
that issué, too, to talk about.

We also have the fact that the Court is aware that
the defendant has applied to, but been rejected, to Mental
Health Court as a possible approach to sen£encing here on
account of, apparently, according to those that are
gatekeepers in the Mental Health Court, have determined,
based on the natufe of the charges here, the defendant would
not be a suitable candidate.

The Court is also aware that the defense has
petitioned for diversion, which is a process well-known to
most of us here, where somebody in circumstances like this,
i1f the Court felt it was a fair and just response to what
happened, allow them the opportunity to continue their
sobriety, take positive steps in their life, and at some
point in time possibly work this off from your record, as
opposed to being adjudicated a felon.

The Court has reviewed in preparation for this
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morning a lot of things.

I'm aware, for exampie, that the defendant 'is
currently engaged in counseling with counselor ~~ is it
Rubenstein?

MR. VILORIA: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. That's ongoing, and appears to be
helpful.

The Courﬁ is aware of the year-ago substance abuse
evaluation that was prepared, the conclusions embedded in
that.

The Court is aware of the -~ also about a year ago --

report done by Dr. Martha Mahaffey with respect to

'psychological evaluation, her conclusions and

recommendations.

The Court has reviewed many letters in
mitigation: Mr. Nied's mother, Mr. Nied's brother, other
relatives, friends, employer, co-workers.

The Court is aware of Mr. Nied's status as a student
at UNR, the courses he's taking; that he's a slighfly-above—B
student, at least in his first semester, and he's enrolled
for the spring semester.

The Court is aware that he completed -- and I don't
know -- the acronym, it looks like it's Boulevard =-- the

Boulevard Program, seven months, and did well there.
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The Court reviewed the defendant's written statement,

as well, about his thoughts on what happened here, and how

remorseful he is.

And then I read a very powerful statement from 6ne of
the victims. And I'm not sure if that was ~- because it
wasn't signed, so I'm hoping that person is here today, and
will address the Court, or at least the State can address
this. I don't know if that statement was ﬁrom Mr. Holt or
from Mr. Nefga, if I'm pronouncing that right.

Do you know the answer to that?

MR. NAUGHTON: Yes, Your Honor.

That was provided by Mr. Holt.

THE COURT: Thank you.

I read that. The impact, the seriousness,
significant impact that the accident had on Mr. Holt: on his
life, on his enjoyment of everyday activities, ability to
work, provide for his family, relations with his wife. TIt's
affected, it's clear, almost every single aspect of his
existence.

I'm aware that the defendant is out on bail. I'm
aware that he's performed well out on bail.

I'm unaware that there have been any transgressions,
slip-ups, new charges, positive tests, anything like that.

I'm aware you're working over at Eclipse Pizza. I
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know that they like you over there, and you're doing a good
job.

So in a moment I'll entertain argument from both.
sides, and I'll hear from the defendant, and I'l1l heér,
lastly, from the victims on how -~ if they want to address
the Court, on how this impacted them, and what they believe a
fair and just sentence is, and I will make a determination on
a very difficult case. Because make no mistake about it.
This is an extremely serious set of circumstances and
criminal activity.

Having said that, eqﬁally clear to the Court is that
sitting over here, whether he's adjudicated a felon this
morning or not, is not a criminal. It's a young man who may
have -~ or not may havé -— who committed a crime, for which
he'll be punished.

But as I said during the arraignment, however this
shakes out, there will be some finality on the criminal
justice piece. However this shakes out. It's for everyone's
determination to whether this continues to influence who they
are for the next 50 or 60 years, or they're able to keep that
a part of their -- Ehe fabric of their soul, but move past
it. Of course, that's a different analysis for a criminal
defendant or a victim of crime. But the Court knows the

difference between somebody who commits a criminal act and
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someone who has an impure heart, who, indeed, is a criminal.

# And that's a different evaluation on what is fair and just,

850, with that, let's start with argument, please,
from the defense. You can address anything you'd like,

Mr, Viloria. But at some point please address the

- presentence investigation report. If there are any changes,

corrections, edits, or modifications, please bring those to
the Court's attention.

MR, VILORIA: Thank you, Your Honor.

Your Honor, I've spoken -- preliminarily, we're going
to object to the PSR or the PSI, or the PSP in its entirety
as it relates to the PSP factors.

In particular, Your Honor, if you take a look at the

scoring matrix that they have, dated December 12th, that

scoring matrix -- and I know Your Honor is familiar with it,
the Probation Success Probability -- PSP -- scores. And this
is predicated -- and there was a lengthy discussion in the

Supreme Court in 2016, under Blankenship. I know Your Honor
is famillar with that case.

And last evening, in reviewing the scoring matrix, if
that's what I can call it, looking at it, I was prepared to
come before Your Honor and make a Blankenship argument;
namely, they failed to account -- as you note, if' you take a

look at the last page of the PSI, they failed to check the

10
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box "Mental health issues," and they failed to do a downward
deviation.

Blankenship addressed that issue. The Supreme Court
sald that the Division is required to do a downward deviétion
based on mental health. Ironically, bipolar, the same thing
is suggested by.Dr. Mahaffey in this case.

And in preparing for that Blankenship argument, Your
Honor, I began to look at the statutory framework, as well as
the administrative framework.. And it was troubling.

Blankenship discusses what were formerly the 27
objective factors that were set forth in Nevada
Administrative Code, Section 213.590, and indicated that none
of these objective factors addressed mental health issues;
and then went on to conclude that the Court was required to
be advised of that by the Division in their downward
departure; in fact, would have altered the "Borderline"
recomnendation to a "Probation" recommendation, just like T
believe here,

But the real problem, Your Honor, in looking -- so I
went to look at the objective factors, so that I could lock
at the scoring sheet, and actually analyze the breakdown, so
I could put together a coherent argument this morning.

So if you start with the predicate statute, which is

NRS 213.10988, it says, "The Chief Parole and Probation

il
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officer" -- that's the director —~."shall adopt" ~- shall;
mandatory ~- "adopt regulation standards to assist him or her
in formulating recommendations regarding the granting of
probation,”

And then it goes on to read, "The standards must" --
must -- "be based on objective criteria for determining the
person's_probability of success."

That's the PSP -- Probation Success Probability --
matrix that they rely upon.

And then it says, when the Chief adopts these
regulations that set forth the objective criteria for us all
to consider -- namely, the Division, in their
recommendation ~— they have to do so in compliance with
233~B, which, as Your Honor knows, is the Administrative
Procedures Act.

So these objective criteria that they're scoring
defendants upon must be set forth in the Administrative Code.
And they have been, for yearsl

So last evening I'm trying to score this out, and I
go to the Administrative Codes —-- namely, 213.590 and
213,610 -- or 600, and, lo and behold, they've been
withdrawn.

S0 as we sit here today ~- and they were withdrawn in

December of last year. So as we sit here today, Your Honor,

12

APP.0052



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

the Division is not in compliance.
They.are required by the NRS to have objective:

criteria and factors to determine a person's success on

probation.

And it's interesting, if you look at Footnote 5 in
Blankenéhip -~ and that is a 2016 opinion ~- it says, "NAC
213.590 and its companion, NAC 213.600, are under review, and
may be deleted from the Administrative Code.”

Well, they were deleted. Sometime in December, I
placed a call to Chief Wood, Natalie Wood, to find out the
exact date.

Now, why is this problematic? Because it is the
objective criteria that was previously set forth in 213 that
formulates the basis they apply that to their scoring sheet.

If I could read from a relevant section, beginning at
412, That's 375 Pacific 3d 412, on Blankenship.

"PSPs are separated into four broad categories: prior
criminal history, present offenses, social history, and
community impact. These four éategories include a total of
35 independent considerations, which are based upon Nevada
Administrative Code 213.590's 27 objective factors."

And that's because the Division must use objective factors.

"Notably, none of the 35 considerations or the 27

factors take into account a defendant's mental disabilities.

13
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The 35 considerations are independently scored in the PSP,
using a separate form to guide the Division when assigning
points: the scoring sheet.”

We don't have a scoring shéet. What we have is their
point system,

"The points assigned to all 35 considerations are
then added, to arrive at an overall PSP score. Overall
scores below 55 result in automatic prison recommendation.
Scores ranging between 55 and 64 are -considered borderline.
And scores above 64 allow for a recommendation of probation.

"When an overall PSP score warrants a recommendation
of prison, or when the Division decides to recommend prison
for a borderline candidate ~-'" which is what we have here.
They've classified him as a borderline candidate,
recommending prison.

THE COURT: Twelve to 36.

MR. VILORIA: That's correct, Your Honor.

It says, "A raw score is computed consisting of the
scores for the consideration of the prior griminal history,
present offense categories. The raw score is then translated
into a sentencing range, using the sentencing scale as
articulated in 213.600."

It doesn't exist anymore.

S0, as we know, in accord with Sasser and Stockmeier,

14
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the time is now. So I move to strike the entirety of the
Division's -- Parocle and Probation -~ PSP score, and ask that
the Court disregard it because it's not based on objective
criteria. There are none in place.

The Division right now, virtually every sentence that
comes before the Court when the Court considers this now, is
problematic, if there's an objection. Because, for whatever
reason, they withdrew the provisions. Even thoﬁgﬁ the state
law requires there be objective criteria, there are none.

Now, if the Court is not inclined to grant my motion
to strike, and does want to consider -- and, of course, the
cleaner fhing would be for the Court to simply say, "I
understénd the arqument, and I'm disregarding that, and I'm
going to rule on other factors,”" then there's no issue
post~judgﬁent.

However, if you look at this, just like Blankenship,
the "Prior criminal history" category, "Present Offense"
categories, they did not weight anything with his mental
disabilities and the suffering that this young man has gone
thgough.

Please. I know Mr. Holt is here. Not to minimize
the victim. I mean, this man, the victim, has suffered
tremendously, as well. I don't mean to offend him or

minimize that impact at all, Your Honor.

15
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But if you take what should have been allocated
there, that's a 3. That takes his raw score from a 29, you
multiply -- to a 32. You multiply the raw score times 1.2,
it takes it from a 34.8, which the Division rounded up to a
35, it takes it to a 38.

And then, just like in Blankenship, they deducted two
points on his employment for mental health. You can't. That
was the sole issue in Blankenship. They deducted a full 6.
This yoﬁng man has been continuously employed, save and
except for those periods when he's been inpatient care or
incarcerated. He's worked, always worked.

So that score, that should have been a full 6.

That's another two points.

So if you take 38 plus 28, that places him, by the --
if the Court wanted to contemplate it, it's a 66. It's no
longer a borderline-probation case. It is a probation case,
by their own guidelines,

8o, number one, my motion is, Your Honor, I object to
the PSI's calculation of the former 213.590 and 600 factors
because they've been withdrawn and don't exist. So we're in
no man's land as we sit here today. And so that should be
stricken or disregarded by the Court.

If the Court is inclined, then the Court should make

the Blankenship adjustment and say, "Yes, I'm going to add —-
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I'm not going to penalize" -- just like they did in
Blankenship -~ "and deduct points on employment, and take
away." And, in fact, that bump takes him into the
"Probation" category.

Having said that, Your Honor, and made the record
with respect to this young man --

THE COURT: Let's do this. Because at some point I'm
going to have -- hear the State's response. But I don't want
to hear it just yet.

If you would please proceed to argument, under the
assumption that the Court, for one reason or the other, is
going to proceed with sentence this morning.

MR, VILORIA: Perfect, Your Honor. That's where I'm
heading next.

THE COURT: Thank you,

MR. VILORIA: This young man, Your Honor, the Court
ought to know, initially, upon contacting me, his whole -
concern was for the welfare of these people. He wanted to
reach out to them, apologize, talk to them,

I sald, "You know, that's against my advice. It may
or may not be received well by Mr. Holt and the other victim.
Certainly we don't know what the status of the case will be,
énd you don't want to be making statements that can harm you,

or engaging in conduct. Maybe Mr.. Holt doesn't ever want to
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look at you. And that's understandable."

But from day one this.young man has been greatly
concerned about the welfare of these people, greatly
troubled, filled with guilt and remorse and sorrow.

And, you know, a measure of character is not this
event. It's what this young man has done to respond to it.
And.in that regard, we're going to ask that the Court grant
our 458 petition,

And the reasons for that are set forth in -- I should
note that there was no formal opposition, which is the normal
course. Oftentimes the prosecutors don't file written
oppositions. But sometimes they do. There was no formal
opposition. Theoretically, the law is, if it's not opposed,
it's meritorious, and should be granted.

Miss Willingham indicates that he qualifies. The
Court knows the standard. On the use, he scored 11 out of
11, meeting the definition at that time of an addict
qualifying. Between the age of 18 and 19, he was using
cannabis daily.

I want to speak to one issue, Your Honor. The lab
results in this case, he was not under the influence at the
time of this event. I think thét's an important distinction.

He had no active THC metabolite. So that means it processed

“through his body, it's no longer psychoactive, meaning no
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longer impaired him. But he had used in the day prior and
hours prior. 6.9 -- if my memory serves me correct --
nanograms per milliliter of metabolite. No active THC was
found, no other drugs. I mear, it's important.

I anticipate that the State is going to argue the
nature and gravity and the‘seriousness of the offense. It's
not to minimize it. But the Legislature took that into
account. And the Legislature delineated what types. of
offenses are diversion-eligible.

‘Of course, Your Honor knows 200 offenses are not.
Sexual assault is not eligible.. Attempted murder is not
eligible. Robbery is not eligible.

The Legislature has already defined and looked at the
nature and quality and content and character of the offense
and determined: Yes, recklgss driving causing bodily harm is
a serious offense, but is still diversion-eligible for the
proper candidate.

Mr. Nied 1s a proper candidate.

He did his intensive treatment, as the Court has
identified, for almost eight months.

He's been doing substance abuse counseling -- 25
sessions -- since his return, with Gary Rubenstein.

As the Court has noted, he is enrolled; but not only

that, he's doing well,

19

APP.0059



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
s
20
21
22
23

214

That 45-day residential program, I want to just
highlight some of the things.

Why is he different? Well, not only did he complete
the program, but, as noted, he was stellaf. B~1l-v~d --
Boulevard -- noted in‘their report that he was a stellarx
client, one of the few who progressed into their alumni
program. So he didn't just do the progfam; he did it at a
high level.

The Court has seen the letters in mitigation., And I
think it's important for the record to articulate some 'of
those things.

Of course, every mother ought to speak highly of
their child. And Miss Stoever does. You wouldn't expect
anything less. I won't address it.

Dave Fish, owner of Eclipse, who he works for, who
his older brother, Brandon, previously worked for, he
describes him as a solid, exemplary employee; good human
being.

Robert Hasler: Amazing character. He's responsible,
kind, respectful, goodhearted, and he has amazing potential.

Carrie and Marc Paulus: He's a good moral person.

Ed Himmelberg pleads, urged the Court for leniency,
having known the kind of character this young man has.

Richard Nevis: This time frame was out of character.
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He has a better purpose in life than prison.

Matthew Freeman: He's a fine and responsible man.

Christopher Capurro: Significant in that this is
Ridge House, Life Recovery. That's what he does. He's met
multiple times, counseled, discussed. The period of time
that Tyler was there, resided in that residence in March,
2016, he says, "I can tell you, Your Honor, that he has
genuine remorse." Genuine. And he says he is a prime
candidate for diversion.

And not to minimize -- and I know Mr. Holt is here --
I would just, you know, hope that he understands my role.
And I sympathize and empathize, and I know that he's
suffered, and his family has suffered. It's not a good thing
for him. And I appreciate that. And so does Mr. Nied.

Andria Nied: It's out of character. He's got a
bright future. He's honest,‘genuine; big heart.

Brandon, his brother: Seen a great level of
determination and growth since this; that he's a benefit to
society. That's what his brother is saying.

Well, if you look at the history, Judge -~ and, vyou
know, so many times the defendant comes before you after the
fact 'in an effort to kind of create or elicit or manufacture
or manifest mental problems that justify the conduct in the

case. There's no prior event, and then, all of a sudden, on
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the commission of the crime, "Gee, I was under a mental lapse

that night. You know, I was under some defective mind or

reason. And look at now. I've been in therapy and

treatment."

I understand that. But that's not what you have
here.

This young man's troubles began in Christmas of 2016.
He graduated from Reno High, 2016. He goes up to Oregon,
Christmastime he is starting to exhibit emotional
difficulties and erratic and bizarre behavior. It's called
to his mom's attention.

By April, Your Honor, he hits his head on a slag
line --

THE COURT: -~ and falls off, hits his head on a
tree, or on the ground.

MR. VILORIA: And, secondly, on a headboard. I don't
know the magnitude of that.

But that, coupled with his use -- and thbse are
decisions he made to use. He understands that. He had a
marijnana card, so he did it right. He had a license to ﬁse
marijuana because of his ongoing issues that he's had his
entire adult life of insomnia. He was using that in an
effort to try to sleep. That's why he had the card.

And as many young college kids do, he had three
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occasions in that spring of 2017 where he experimented with
LSD.

Dr. Mahaffey -- and I know Your Honor read the
report -- talks about it's very difficult to discern with
complete accuracy whéether this was a drug-induced psychotic
state, or whether it was an induced bipolar state as a
result.

THE COURT: She sald she couidn‘t determine that.

MR. VILORIA: That's right. That's right.

But the manifestations of his sickness and his mental
difficulties were there as early as December, and then came
to light in April.

He was found April 22nd. This guy is mentally ill.
His roommates called Oregon Police Department. They admitted
him to Sac;ed Heart on April 22nd. The diagnosis at that
time was altered mental state. He was walking in and out of
vehicle traffic, in the roadways, in Eugene, wandering
throughout, had been wandering for several days in Eugene.
Abandoned some of his personal belongings and shoes at the
river. Wasn't going to school. Was walking around Eugene,
hearing voices, thinking that -- in fact, one of the records
notes that he thought he was actually in Reno. 2And he's in
Eugene, Oregon.

He was confused, At that time, he had no
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recollection of what he had been doing for days. That's
April 22nd.

He then was admitted again to Sacred Heart on the
23rd, exhibiting bizarre behavior. He was trying to get in a
car so he could sleep, and he was laying next to cars.

This young man, who has done well in high school,
admitted to Oregon, and now wandering about a campus,
exhibiting bizarre behaviors. Unable to answer questions at
Sacred Heart. They said, again, this young man, some sort of
altered mental state. He got out.

The 24th of April he was re-admitted to Sacred Heart,
in Springfield this time; not in Eugene, but in Springfield.
They noted that his mental health waxed and waned throughout;
he was confused, distraught, and withdrawn.

By the way, all of these records were provided to
Rene Biondo, who is the case manager for Mental Health. T
can't imagine a more appropriate candidate for Mental Health.
I wasn't aware there's a statutory prohibition. To my
knowledge, there isn't for this offense. But for whatever
reason, they declined him. If there's ever a calling-out for
mental health, this is it.

May 12th, '17. He's two days there. He travels

back.

And what happens, Your Honor, the days prior -- I've
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got to go through my notes -- four days before -- so what
happens is, his mom goes to Oregon, withdraws him. The game
plan is, he's supposed to be in Utah, with his father.

His mother described him as he didn't evén recoghize
her and know who she was, upon firét contact.

That's how out-of~it this young man was. Whether it
was a combination of hitting his head, psychotropic drug use,
combined with marijuana, who knows? As Dr. Mahaffey -- I
mean, I've got to defer to her report, her expertise.

We do know, though, that this is not manipulated or
calculated solely for purposes of sentencing. It's
pre-existing.

On the 9th, four days prior to this tragic event, he
took a train from Utah to Reno. As articulated, he was
hearing things there. He felt that he wasn't wanted there.
He actually thought that he saw his stepmother blowing --
using, smoking. Felt that he was an outsider, and that he
needed to leave,

On the 10th, he began to hear the same voices that he
had seen -- heard before.

On the 11lth, based upon some of the comments that
occurred in the dorm room here, he felt that he wasn't wanted
here, as well. He was paranoid, delusional. So he thought

he'll head back to Utah. 8o, on the 1l1lth, he drove back to
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Utah.

He saw a UPS man, confronted the UP$ man, believing

that the UPS man, who was walking in Utah, was there to

deliver him his personal belongings that he had abandoned in

Utah ~- or, excuse me -~ in Oregon.

was.

That's how deranged he

On the 12th, he became extremely paranoid there. He

was hearing voices.

around Reno, didn't sleep for days.

Left for Reno,

for good.

He drove

On the 13th, this tragic event transpires. He hadn't

slept in days.

Interestingly, in retrospect, he had to keep moving.

I think the Court knows, when you read it, he felt that he

had to keep going, he couldn't stop, he had to move, or he

was dead. This was his thoughts.

He thought that he had to drive fast.

He was low on

gasoline, and believed that he needed to drive extremely

fast, because the faster he drove, the more gas would come

back into his tank.

That's the thought process.

Heard voices at this time so loud that as if a

speaker had been turned on and amplified.

No doubt suffering from a drug-induced psychosis

and/or bipolar, with psychotic affect, as Dr. Mahaffey

indicates,
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Now, why is this significant?

The Division is recommending prison. And in all due
respect to the officer in the court -~ I know it's not his
work -- in my opinion, it has to be one of the most
unenlightened reports I've seen in a long‘time. It fails,
under Blankenship, to take anything into account and deviate
down, as they're required to.

Look, it's a tragic event. And the only thing that
Mr. Nied can do is to continue to educate himseif, advance
himself socially, economically, financially, and do the best
he can to make it right for Mr. Holt, pay Mr. Holt every dime
he's entitled to.

I disagree. I know many of the courts say they don't
believe wages 1s a compensable item on victim restitution.
I've told the prosecutor I disagree.

Martinez doesn't preclude it. Rowe doesn't preclude
it. Major doesn't preclude it. Norwood doesn't preclude it.
It says you're entitled to be compensated for your injuries.

Well, so, too, does the parallel world. In a PI
case, injuries includes special, general damages.

Mr, Holt should be made whole for his wages and lost
wages. That's the right thing. Mr. Nied wants to do that.
That's the right thing to do. This man suffered and couldn't

work because of this event. He understands that. He
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understands that the only way he can atone and make it right
and be fully accountable is to continue on the path he's
been, be better, and make it right to Mr. Holt to the extent
that he can.

Now,; there's some things he can never make right. We
understand that and acknowledge that. Some things, Mr. Holt,
that we will never understand or exﬁerience because we don't
stand in his shoes. All we can do is say, "Hey, look, he's
going to do his best to pay you every dime over the course of
his life that he can, to make you whéle for the damage he
caused.," That's all the law allows.

So when we look at the justifications in our system
for sentencing, the Court knows that we have specific
deterrence. Obviously, if Mr. Nied is inﬁarcerated, he can't
commit crime.

The notion that there's a general deterrent effect
makes no sense. And, in fact, there's no empirical data.
When defendants commit crimes, they don't first
think, "Ah, gee. If I go burglarize that house, I'm loocking
at some prison. If I go commit a robbery, I'm looking at two
to 15 years." That's not the process. In fact, the modern
studies are, there is no general deterrent effect.

So then we have pure punitive: an eye for an eye,

pound of flesh. He needs to go to prison to be punished,
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Well, this young man has demonstrated throughout all this
material, punishes himself daily, suffers tremendous guilt,
is remorseful.

And from day one that was his concern. "How is
Mr. Holt? How is the other Qictim doing?"

Same thing from his mom. That's all I would hear
from them,

"I don't know. I don't have any medical records yet.
I haven't heard anything." That was my response to them. "I
haven't got the med records. I don't know. As soon as T
hear something, I'll let you know."

Never any concern about their own welfare. Never any
concern. It's always about Mr. Holt and the other victim.

Finally, the last prong of why the penal system
sentences is rehabilitation. Rehabilitation is one of the
four core values of our criminal justice system and what we
do. People ought to be given the opportunity of
rehabilitation.

Over the past 19 months -~ it's been a long time ~-
but I can't recall a client that's worked harder, longer,
more dedicated, to making amends and making it right, than
Mr. Nied.

This young man is deserving of diversion.

Without any disrespect to Mr. Holt, is society better
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off when you take this young man and make him a felon? I
would implore this Court, no. Because now we know one thing.
He's relegated to low-earning jobs, unless he becomes his own
business owner. And that's the only way. You put the
"felony" label, it's difficult to be gainfully employed.
Nobody wants to hire you. Nobody wants to touch you. You
have the scarlet "F." What benefit is it to our community?

Plus, the likelihood of him ever being able to make
meaningful contributions towards the restitution to make Mr.
Holt and the other victim whole is greatly diminished.

He's doing well. He's back on track. Nineteen
months, not a single issue. That's not someone that we need
to incarcerate.

The prison system is an epic fail. We know that.
Highest per-capita prison sentence in the world. Over 2.4
million inmates in America, in prisons, failing epically.
This is not a young man who belongs in prison. He's a young
man who belongs in diversion.

And if this Court -- and you could rightfully say
it == if this Court said, "You know, he does need to have
pure retribution, eye for an eye, pound for pound, flesh for
flesh, punishment,” the Court has the authority to mete that,
and still not make this young man a felon, .

Your Honor could say, "You know what I'm going to do?
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I'm going to place Mr. Nied in the Regimental Discipline
Program, 190¥day Boot Camp."

Pursuant to 176A.770, Your Honor has the authority.
We don't believe it's needed. But you could.

I asked Mr. Nied yesterday, "Do you want me to make
that sort of an alternative position?"

"Yes. Anything, anything and everything I can, I
w&uld do it to avoid having that felony, and to making things
right for Mx. Holt." That's his response. "I'm prepared,
Tom, for whatever the judge does.™

Speaks highly. A lot of young men would say, "No. I
won't even consider'that.

I don't much have more to add, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Let me ask you this: 1Is there a
restitution number the defense is suggesting or would
stipulate to in the event the State --

MR. VILORIA: Well, I sort of disagree with =--
apparently, most of the judges and some of the prosecutors
believe that lost wages should not be included.

I told Mr. Naughton, "I believe it ought to bhe."

THE COURT: Well, give the Court --

MR. VILORIA: We don't know, Your Honor. I was just
provided, about 45 minutes ago, with an update. It appears

to be a printout from his civil lawyers, Bradley, Drendel.
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It's just a printout of the ledgers. There's no underlying
bills.

And I don't knbw what the -- the out-of-pocket
expense, according to this document that they gave me, if I
understand it correctly -- and, again, no disrespect to
Mr. Holt. And, of course, he can explain it, if I'm
misreading it. He says that his ocut-of-pocket expense is
30,152.62. 30,152.62. And it does not address any lost
wages.

But I've set forth the reasons why in my brief this
morning as to why this Court ought not award the
half-a~-million-~plus.,

And I fhink the precedent is there in Major, because
they allow the District Court to depart and allocate and take
into account collateral payments made in that case.

It seems fundamentally wrong that, if insurance has
paid for it, that Mr. Nied ought to again pay for that. I
agree to make the victim whole out-of-pocket, whatever that
number is. I'm assuming Mr, Holt will tell us what his lost
wages were, and if that number I just quoted -- the
30,152.62 -- is the other out-of-pocket.

Whatever his lost wages were, in that amount we have
no problem, Absolutely none. And Mr. Nied wants to pay that

back. Understands that. That's not only a legal obligation,
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as he discussed with me. He gets it. It's a moral
obligation. He understands.

He really is a fine man, Your Honor, and a pleasure
to represent,

So, having said that, whatever Mr. Holt tells us on
those numbers, then I can advise the Court as to the amount .
We just don't know.

And there's still no wage loss. I understand the
State's position is, because it's generally discounted or not
approved by the courts, they don't procure it. I disagree.
I think it ought to be in the calculus. I'm not aware df any
statutory prohibition or case law that says it can't be.

Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you very much.

Just a minute, Mr. Naughton.

Mr. Nied, if you would please stand up for a moment.
Now is your opportunity to address the Court, tell me
anything you'd like considered before sentence is pronounced,
after which I'll hear from the State.

THE DEFENDANT: I'd like to speak directly to
Mr. Holt, if that is possible,.

I'm so sorry. I think about that event every day. I
try to think where I could have changed something, anything,

so that wouldn't happen. I will do everything in my power to
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make it right. I'm terribly sorry.

MR. HOLT: Thank you.

THE DEFENDANT: Thank you,

THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much.

Mr. Naughton, please proceed with the State's
argument.

MR. NAUGHTON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Also, if you would, make sure you address
the restitution.

MR. NAUGHTON: Yes, Your Honor.

First I'd like to address the Blankenship argument
that's been raised today.

THE COURT: Go right ahead.

MR. NAUGHTON: 1In looking at the Blankenship case,
that case dealt with an individual who was unemployable as a
result of his mental health history.

The Court in that case held that the Division had
effectively negatively counted his mental health disability
against him in determining his success likelihood on
probation. That's not the situation that we have here today.

When you look at the scoring sheet that's attached to
the PSI by the Division of Parole and Probation, in the
bottom half of that scoring sheet, under "Employment/

Program," he scores 4, for "Continuous/housewife/mental
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health.” So he's getting credit for the fact that he has
been fully employed when he is capable. And he's also

alternatively getting credit for the fact there's a mental

health issue here which may impact his ability to be

employed. He is getting the full points to which he's
entitled as a result of that.

Under "Employability,” the defendant scores 2 for
"Readily/not needed/mental health."

Again, the Division is recognizing that he is readily
employable and/or he has a mental health issue which may
impact his employability. He is getting the credit which
Mr. Blankenship did not get. And, therefore, that argument,
I think, is -- it should be disregarded. It's absolutely
different from the situation that appeared in
Mr. Blankenéhip's scoring situation.

Regarding the objective criteria, here they are, Your
Honor, in black-and-white. They'rg not in the Nevada
Administrative Code. They were repealed. The Supreme Court
recognized that they may be repealed in that Blankenship
case. However, they're set out here, with the scores
indicated by the Division when they calculated his likelihood
to be successful on parole -- excuse me -- on probation.

THE COURT: On probation.

MR. NAUGHTON: And they are set forth so that
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everybody can take a look at them.

If Mr. Viloria had questions about the scorings of
those items, it is not uncommon that we see folks subpoena
those and request those so they can actually look at the
individual matrix for each one of those questions and have
those available., However, the objective criteria themselves
are set forth, and the Division did rely on objective
criteria here in coming up with their recommendation.

Se I would ask that the Court not strike the scoring
sheets, not strike the recommendation from the Division,
recognize that there were objective criteria used in this
case, and go forward with the presentence investigation
report as otherwise written.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. NAUGHTON: Regarding the restitution figure in
this case, Your Honor, the State believes that, based upon
the information provided in the presentence investigation
report, that the proper amount of restitution in this case is
$463,825.59,

And that comes from the medical bill summary that is
referenced under "Victim number 2," totaling $459,147.26.

And then the additional note that there was a vehicle
physical damage payout of $4,678,33.

Your Honor --
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THE COURT: What about the legal issue that the
defense appears to be making to the Court that, if the
bucket -- the largest bucket of this amount is being paid for
by medical insurance, then why should the defendant have to
suffer the consequences of paying for something that the
Qictim didn't -- he or she herself -- have to come
out-of-pocket on?

MR. NAUGHTON: And I think Your Honor touched on this
earlier,

Martinez versus State talks about that the defendant
effectively cannot benefit, does not reap the benefit of the
fact that the victim was insured and was able to mitigate
their loss.

In Martinez, the Court specifically held, "A
defendant's obligation to pay restitution to the victim may
not, of course, be reduced because a victim is reimbursed by
insurance proceeds."

Any loss attributable to the criminal conduct is
recompensable as restitution. The fact that the victim in
this case, Mr. Holt, had health insurance to cover those
items, that's great Mr. Holt was not out-of-pocket for those
expenses. But those were still expenses accrued on his
behalf as a result of the criminal act in this case.

And Martinez and all of the other statutes and case
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law in this state say that those amounts are recompensable as
restitution.

In the Martinez case, in particular, the Court
vacated the poftion of the judgment that ordered that the
restitution be paid to Humana Insurance Company, but held
that the amount was not inappropriate if ordered to be paid
to the Victim.

S0 the Court considered whether or not the Court
should offset the restitution by the amount that had been put
forth by the insurance company, and decided that the amount
was not incorrect; that the payee was incorrect.

So, in this case, Your Honor, based upon the total
amount that has been paid on behalf of Mr. Holt, the State
believes that that is appropriate. .The Court directly
considered that in Martinez. And would ask that the Court
impose that full amount of the restitution.

THE COURT: Thank you.

What's a fair and just sentence, then, under the
circumstances?

MR. NAUGHTON: Thank you, Your Honor.

The State is recommending 12 to 36 months in prison
for this defendant.

That's in line with what the Division recommends.

That's also what the victims -- it's my understanding -- are
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going to be asking for when they have an opportunity to
address this Court.

I want to touch upon some of the things that have
been brought up today and, in particular, the petition for
diversion in this case.

It's the State's position that this deféndant is not
an addict as he stands before this court today. This was not
a subsfance~abuse~related crime, in as much as he's not
charged with DUI.

Mr. Viloria is absolutely correct. The defendant had
THC metabolite in his system on the date of this offense.

6.4 nanograms, I absolutely agree with Mr. Viloria that that
was not an active psycho -- or it was not an active drug
impacting the defendant's ability to perceive and react.

THE COURT: It's evidence of prior, fairly-recent

use.,
MR. NAUGHTON: That's correct, Your Honor.
And I would also note that, pursuant to -- I believe
it's Dr. Mahaffey's report -- it was entirely out of his

system by the time he underwent a screening at Carson-Tahoe
Behavioral Health on May 21st. 2and so all those substances'
metabolite actives, what have you, were out of his system
within days.

Per the defendant's own report, he had stopped
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smoking marijuana. He had last smoked marijuana in the days
or hours leading up to the crash in this case. And he has
had almost two years of sobriety leading up to today's date,

He has already gone through a 45-day inpatient
program, and he has undergone ongoing outpatient treatment,
as well,

His intake evaluation at -- I'm going to call it the
Boulevard Treatment Center, for the sake of going forward
today -~ his intake evaluation there recommended intensive
outpatient for three to five days, for a minimum of 20 weeks.
That was done -- that evaluation was done in August of 2017.
More than -- we're coming up on a year and a half since that
happened, 20 weeks. That's all they recommended.

Per Dr. Mahaffey's report, at page 11, "Due to his
success in achieving sobriety, he" -- referring to the
defendant in this case -- "does not feel that he is mentally
or physically dependent on drugs. He will complete his
current treatment program at Boulevard in November or
December of 2017." We know that he actually completed that
in March of 2018.

So, at the time a year ago, more than'a year ago,
that he was meeting with Dr. Mahaffey, he did not believe
that he had an addiction issue going forward because he had

successfully maintained his sobriety.
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On page 15, Dr. Mahaffey's conversation with the
defendant's treatment providexr at The Boulevard, Miss Brooks,
"Miss Brooks described that, in the presence of clean drug
testing, Miss Brooks does not feel that Tyler has a primary
psychiatric disorder or substance-related disorder."

So, again, a year ago, in the absence of ongoing
dirty tests or positive tests, his own treatment provider at
The Boulevard did not feel that he had an ongoing
substance-use disorder.

Dr. Mahaffey's ultimate recommendation, written more
than a year ago, was for six more months of follow-up
counseling, at a lower level of care.

That was written in December of 2017. We know he's
continued to engage in treatment since that time.

The State does not believe that this defendant is
currently an addict, and would not benefit from the type of
supervision that the Court's diversion program provides.

The statute reflects individuals who would benefit,
who are rehabilitatable. TIt's the State's position this
defendant is already rehabilitated to the extent he had a
substance abuse disorder, and, therefore, does not gqualify,
would not benefit from that program, going forward.

THE COURT: Let me hit the pause button. I want to

play devil's advocate for a minute.
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The defendant is in a bit of catch-22 because,
according to the argument of defense counsel and the records
that are before the Court, Mr. Nied has done everything in
his power to change his ways, .get help that he needs, and try
to make some level of amends, and take steps to prevent
something like this from ever happening again.

S0, on the one hand, those are all positive changes.
Positive for him, positive for this community. Hopefully,
the victim believes those are steps in the right direction,

But now they, according to the State, should be used
as consideration or informative to the Court why diversion
really isn't an option, because there's nothing to divert.
There's nothing -~ there's no level of treatment oversight or
structure that the people downstairs can provide that he, Mr.
Nied, doesn't already have or has had access to.

So rather than, if he hadn't taken these positive
steps, and he came here, and he still hadn't started the
process of getting on top of the issues that he clearly had
at the time of this event, he would be able to take advantage
of the diversion.

So how is the defense supposed to handle it if the
State is going to say, "Look, you're well enough, so that
shouldn't even be an option"?

MR. NAUGHTON: Not make the application, Your Honor.

42

APP.0082



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

If you don't qualify, you don't qualify. You can't make that

Aapplication.

It's my understanding that the defense position is
that, because he has that evaluation from ~- I believe it's
Nieda Willingham in this case -~ that he does qualify, and
that the application is appropriate.

It's the State's positioﬁ that that recommendation is
over a year old, and it is no longer applicable, based upon
the work that he has done.

THE COURT: So the State says, "The best the defense
can argue for under such circumstances is a suspended
sentence -~ is a prison sentence, but run it suspended, place
the defendant on probation. That's the best the defense can
argue for, under these circumstances."

MR. NAUGHTON: Your Honoxr, under the circumstances,
he has a qualifying evaluation. And so I don't think that
the defense is incapable of making that argument.

THE COURT: You're saying that the Court should not
exercise its discretion to go along with it.

MR. NAUGHTON: That's correct.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

MR. NAUGHTON: Your Honor, Mr. Viloria talked about
the scale of offenses, and how we should look at those, And

we talked about diversion, and that there are some offenses
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which are not eligible for diversion, and there's others that
are.

I think, when you look at the scale of offenses, I
think that's an absolutely appropriate way to look at any
type of case; this case in particular.

This is on the serious end of offenses which are
diversion-eligible. And as we know, not everybody who is
diversion-eligible gets diversion as a result of the
circumstances of their case, or for any other reason.

We have folks who get diversion for possessing less
than a gram of methamphetamine, and folks are eligible for
diversion all the way up to cases like this. BAnd this is one
of the serious offenses that I think deserves a closerAlook
than the folks who are here for much less serious offenses.

I think it also -~ the scale of offenses also applies
to the range of sentences that thé Legislature has set forth
for each individual crime. In this case, it's
diversion-eligible, it's probation-eligible, and it can be
punished by a maximum of six years in prison.

THE COURT: Quite a range there.

MR. NAUGHTON: Absolutely, Your Honoxr.

And I think, when you look at reckless driving
resulting in death or substantial bodily harm, automatically,

if you're thinking about the maximum end, you start thinking
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about a death case. Obviously, somebody who, the victim is
not here, they have been removed from their family and

everything else, and that cries out for the maximum sentence.

~That's not what we're dealing with here today. That's why

the State is not requesting a maximum sentence. But it's
also the reason that the State is not -- opposing diversion
and not recommending proba£ion in this case.

Substantial bodily harm covers an entire range of
injuries in this state. 1It's pain lasting longer than the
moment of impact. Substéntial bodily harm can be as éerious
as the injuries that Mr. Holt suffered in this case. It can
be something like a broken bone in a foot. It can be a
broken collar bone.

The State would submit that the injuries that
Mr. Holt suffered in this case, the ongoing impact that this
has had on him and his family, warrants more consideration, a
greater penalty within that range of reckless driving
resulting in substantial bodily harm, than a lesser tybe of
injury would cover.

And the State believes that prison is an appropriate
sanction for the type of injury that was inflicted on
Mr. Holt in this case.

At several points in the presentence investigation

report, I believe, in his written statement, the defendant
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stated that the events of that night were like a dream. And
in his statemént that was reported by the Division, he
reported that it felt like a video game; that none of this.
felt real to him,

I think diversion would only reinforce that idea for
this defendant in this case that this was not real, that the
consequences are not real. "Go,continue'to do what you've
been doing, and you will have a restitution amount hanging
over your head, but there's not going to be any additional
punishment going forward." I just don't think that's an
appropriate outcome in this case.

In listening to and reading the mitigation letters
provided by the defense, it struck me that this defendant,
like many defendants that we have coming into the system, has
used this as an opportunity to really change his life, and
change his life for the better,

You hear the report of his brother, of his family
members, of his employers, that he's on an upward track, he's
taking it seriously, that he has gotten himself on the righp
track, and he intends to continue that way in the future.

And I have to think about the parallel track that
Mr. Holt has been on. This has been a forced change for

Mr. Holt.

The defendant, in his written statement in the PSI,
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wrote that, "This whole event never should have taken place."
If he hadn't made some of the decisions that he had made that
night, we would not be here today.

The only thing that Mr. Holt did that night was get

behind the wheel of his minivan. That's the only poor

decision he made, was to be in the same location as this

defendant on a night when he was undergoing the mental health
issues that he was, running from the police, driving --
according to his own report, I believe, according to Dr.
Mahaffey -- at over 100 miles an hour because he felt the
compulsion to do so,

Those are the choices that he made. And he has used
this event to examine himself and put himself on a better
track.

However, Mr. Holt has been on a completely separate
track. When you read his written statement, you see and you
can feel the impact that this haa -

THE COURT: Kind of like a dream for him, too, but,
unfortunately, it's been like a nightmare, like an
out-of~body~experience-type dream.

MR. NAUGHTON: Absolutely, Your Honor.

The reality for him is, every day he has to wake up
with this. With paralysis and weakness on the right side of

his body; unable to work to the same extent that he was able
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to do so before; deal with the bills and the insurance
companies; deal with his house possibly being foreclosed upon
at one point in time. These are everyday challenges that
this defendant -- excuse me ~- that Mr. Holt faces as a
result of this defendant's actions.

If Mr, Holt hadn't come into contact with the
defendant that night, none of this would have happened.

And those choices were the defendant's fault, and not
Mr., Holt's. But he's the one having to deal with the '
consequences of this.

When the defendant's vehicle struck Mr. Holt's, a
bomb went off, and the fallout is still happening to
Mr. Holt.

The defendant talks about wanting to take
responsibility, to be able to work, to improve himself. He
can do all of those things after a prison term in this case.
There's nothing precluding him from doing that.

If he does well on parole, if he completes a prison
term and the parole obligation that would follow that, after
a cértain period of time he can petition to have the records
sealed, and he wouldn't have that scarlet "F" attached to his
name going forward. He would be able to put this behind him
and continue to move forward.

The State believes that punishment works when choices
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are taken away from an individual. The defendant -- excuse
me -- Mr. Viloria talks about the defendant punishing himself
every day, thinking about this. That}s self~imposed. He
still gets to decide where he wants to go every day, what he
wants to do, what majors he wants to major in. He considers
Whether he wants to move to L.A. to start a rap group with
two of his friends.

Mr. Holt doesn't have those options. Mr. Holt is
left dealing with the fallout of this on a much more tangible
basis every single day, on a physical basis that he feels
every single day.

I think true punishment takes those options that the
defendant has out of his hands for a certain period of time,
makes him take responsibility, limit the things he is able to
do in his life going forward for at least a period of time,
and allow him an opportunity to continue to fix and repair
himself while he's in custody, and then while he's on parole
afterwards.

Your Honor, I don't think that I can speak to the
effect this has had on Mr. Holt any more eloquently than he
did in his victim~impact letter, as I am sure he and his
family members are going to do here this morning. So at this
point I would turn it over to them.

I know that his mother, Marie Holt, is the person who
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has calculated the restitution figures in this case. I would
request to call her first.

Mr. Holt's wife, Andria, is here, as well, and would
like to speak.

And then Mr. Holt I would request to speak last.

Pursuant to the NRS on sentencing cases, victims are
folks who are directly impacted by the crime and their
immediate family members. And then, after Marsy's Law passed
last year, our Constitution has been amended to recognize
those folks are victims, as well as anybody who has been
proximately harmed.

I would submit to this Court that it couldn't be any
more apparent that Mr., Holt's wife and mother have been
proximately harmed by this event, and they are the proper
persons to give victim-impact statements.

THE COURT: Hold that thought.

I see Mr. Viloria wants to address the Court.

MR. VILORIA: Your Honor, I would concur with the
last remarks of counsel: that they are included victims. I
have no problem with them speaking. That's their right to do
s50.

If I may, just because they get to go last, two

issues.

Martinez is a reimbursement case, Your Honor, It's
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distinguishable.

And Major allows this Court -- it's implied there the
authority to offset on the insurance paying.

Martinez dealt with reimbursement. This is not a
case of reimbursement, getting reimbursed from an insurance
company, and a payee, being the insurance company,
reimbursing Mr. Holt. That's already been paid by the :
insurance directly.

And then, lastly, 458 doesn't require -- I mean,
that's -- I appreciate the argument of counsel, and that he's
got a task to do, just like I do. But to argue before the
Court you have got to be an addict at the time of sentencing
in order to qualify for 458, that's not what the statutory
framework requires. That's nonsensical. So, in that case,
every defendant ought to continug to use and come before Your
Honoxr --

THE COURT: You heard my question,

MR. VILORIA: Yes.

THE COURT: I said, you know, it's a catch-22, if
that's the way -~

MR, VILORIA: I just want the Court to know that's
not the standard, that's not what the statute requires.

Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: So you can address your response to those
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two comments now, Mr. Naughton, or you can wait until after
the Court hears from the victims. Which would you rather do?

MR. NAUGHTON: If I can address those now, and then
let the victims have the final word.

THE COURT: Of course.

MR. NAUGHTON: As to the restitution argument, Your
Honor, I disagree with Mr. Viloria's reading of Martinez.

It is a reimbursement cise in the sense that it's
reimbursement for the expenses that were incurred on behalf
of the victim in that case. It dealt with unpaid medical
bi;ls that were debts owed by the victim in that case. 8o
these were amounts that were paid by the insurance companies
on behalf of the victim.

I think that's what we're dealing with here in this
case, as well. The amounts reflected in the PSI are amounts
that the insurance company has paid on behalf of Mr. Holt to
receive the medical treatment and rehabilitative care he has
received at that time.

THE COURT: Got it.

MR. NAUGHTON: As far as Major goes, it was an offset
case linasmuch as 1t was a competing District Court order by a
Family Court judge as to child support. And so the holding
in Major was that where there was another judicially-imposed

obligation that can be offset in the calculation of the
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restitution. And the Court viewed what Judge Steinheimer did

in that case by doing that offset favorably.

Here there's no other judgment in place by a Pamily

Court judge or any other judge.

that we're discussing here today.

the initial one in that sense.

This is the only payment

And so I think Major is

As to the addict portion of it, Your Honor,

I think

458 is clear on its face. The diversion portion of it is to

treat addicts. You are an addict on an ongoing basis;

however, at a certain point, folks can change that and put it

behind them. I think it's very clear that the language of

the diversion program contemplates folks who may need

supervision and support. And this defendant doesn't need

that,

I don't think they're precluded from making that

argument. I don't think he's precluded from being in that

program., It's the State's position he does not need that

program on an ongoing basis, and, effectively, the

supervision that program offers would be wasted on this

defendant, based upon the work that he's already done.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Please call Marie Holt.

MR. NAUGHTON: Thank you,

APP.0093
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THE COURT: Good afternoon, ma'am.
THE WITNESS: Good afternoon, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Please make yourself comfortable, slide

in.

THE WITNESS: Thank you,

THE COURT: Feel free to adjust the microphone, speak
into that.

First things first. If you would please state your
namnme ,

THE WITNESS: My name is Marie Holt,
THE COURT: Thank you very much.
Please proceed, Mr. Naughton.
MR. NAUGHTON: Thank you, Your Honor.
MARIE HOLT,
called as a witness on behalf of the State,
first having been duly sworn,
was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. NAUGHTON:
Q. Miss Holt, can you describe your relationship to
Patrick Holt?
A. I am Patrick's mother.
Q. It's my understanding you've been involved in dealing

with the insurance payments regarding this event, 1Is that
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accurate?
A. That's correct.
Q. And are you the individual who provided the

information to the Division when they requested restitution

information?
A, Yes, I am.
Q. Can you describe for us where the amounts that you've

provided to the Division came from.
A, Yes.

As mentioned by the defendant's legal counsel, he was
concerned. that all of the medical billing was not attached.
And the reason why I felt it was not necessary is because T
actually reached out to the health insurance provider and
asked them to provide me with a statement of all of their
expenses that began since the date of the accident.
Unfortunately, they did not provide me with an Excel
document, but only with a PDF.

So I went through the statement which they provided,
which is attached, and pulled out those dollar amounts that
were actually out~of~pocket expenses, either through the
deductible or that were co-payments.

And then I also asked the attorney that we had sought
to provide me with a listing of the.expenses and the

compilations that they had put together from the insurance
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companies and suEh. And so I tried to integrate those two
values into that statement -- or that spreadsheet,

MR. NAUGHTON: Your Honor, may I approach?

THE COURT: You may.
BY MR. NAUGHTON:

Q. Miss Holt, I'm handing you the presentence
investigation report. This was attached to the back of the
victim-impact statement.

Are you familiar with that page?
A. Actually, I did not see this page, so I do not know. .

where that came from. But I know that I provided all of the

information to Andrew Rico of Parole and Probation, and so he

may have been able to pull that information from that data.

Q. Are you familiar with the amounts reflected on that
page?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. And can you describe what those amounts generally
refer to?

A, They were related to when Patrick was first placed
into ‘the hospital, and the ongoing rehabilitation care that
he received as a result of the injuries that he sustained.

Q. Are those amounts reflective of payments made to
hospitals, doctors, rehabilitation providers?

A, Yes, they are.
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Q. Thank you.
MR. NAUGHTON: Your Honor, I have no further
questions at this time.
THE COURT: Thank you.
Mr. Viloria, do you have any questions for Ms. Holt?
MR. VILORIA: Just briefly.
CROSS~EXAMINATION
BY MR. VILORIA:
Q. Ma'am, I'm sorry. I'm just trying to do the best I
can to discern --
MR. VILORIA: May I approach, Your Honor?
THE COURT: You may.
BY MR, VILORIA:
Q. Miss Holt, I was provided about 45 minutes before the
sentencing this spreadsheet. Is that the one you prepared?
A. Yes. The only thing that's missing is, I did
highlight some of the totals, which allowed me to come up
with that total amount. Unfortunately, when it was copied,
that highlighting did not transfer over. But there's no
difference in the numbers itself,
Q. Okay. I'm just going to take some quick notes.
Okay. So is tﬁis, then -- is this a summary that you
got or obtained from the health-care provider in terms of the

amount billed, the amount allowed, the amount paid, the
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out-of-pocket, the deductible, and then this breaks --

Al —~- came from that. Yes. What I did, if you look at
the attached pages --

Q. Yes,

A. ~-- I totaled up each of the line items, because they
did not provide totals.:

And then, if you look at the spreadsheet itself, it
shows you page number 1. And if you go to the attached
document, page number 1, those totals are the result of what
the amounts are shown on page 1.

Q. Okay. And this other document that the.State showed
you =~

A, Yes.

Q. -- that's just -- you've never seen the document, and
you're not quite sure what it is?

A, No, I know what it is. 1I've never seen the document.

So, there were a number of providers that Patrick was
treated by. And so these are a compilation, if you will, of
those expenses that were actually incurred by each of those
facilities,

Q. When I look at that ~- I do a little plaintiffs' work
myself, injury work.
A. Uh~huh.

Q. So, to me, this looks like our medical bill treatment
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summary that we would prepare in the course of a civil case.

A. Right.
Q. Which is the total amounts billed; correct?
A. Correct.

Q. And that number was 459,147.26,.as I understand it,
but may not have included the second hospitalization that
occurred later as a result of the depression; correct?

A. Right. Attempted suicide.

Q. Yes. Okay. 8o if we can go through your
spreadsheet --

A, And, actually, if I may just back up a little to your

statement.
Q. Sure.
A, I believe these are the total amounts that the

providers actually received, rather than what they billed.
So these are the amounts paid by the provider. Okay. A
little bit different.

Q. Right. That's because all of us, our insurance
companies, they all have agreements or contracts.

A. Yes.

Q. And if you're billed a hundred thousand dollars ~--

A. Right.

-~ the insurance only pays 40.

0O

Correct.
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0. And that bill is satisfied in its entirety,

A, Yes,

Q. So if I'm reading -- you have your chart that you
prepared. I think it's probably a good thing that at some
point we will mark it and admit it for the record. Okay?

A. Okay.

0. But while you have it, I just want to understand it.

So the lower totals that are identified as "UMR
claims report," that's hospitalization directly attributable
to this accident; correct?

A. Actually, if you look at the second -~ 50, there's

two sections on the --

Q Yes,

A ~- on the spreadsheet.

0. Yes. And I'm referring to the second section.

A Yes, that's the result of the accident.

Q Okay. So what I have is a total billed amount of

277,503.43. Am I reading --
A, Right.

Q. So Mr, Holt was billed 277,503.43. He got a

discount ~=-
A. Right.
Q. -- because of his plan provider, participant

discount, of 51,494. And then, as these insurance companies
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do, not only do they not pay dollar for dollar, they say,
"We're not going to allow certain forms of treatment."

A, Correct. |

Q. So then they disallowed almost -~ well, 90,555.83,
S0 those are billing write-downé; correct?

A, Actually, I think that the write-~down is the

135,717.
Q. Yes. I misspoke. Yes.
A, Okay.

Q. So they wrote down 135,717.85, saying that Renown -~

your bill is -- you're billed for an MRI at 10 grand. "No.
We only pay 2,400." Whatever that is, that's exempt.
A, They have negotiated rates on file with the Insurance

Commissioner, and they pay based on that.
Q. Yeah, I kKnow. I understand it.
S0 the allowed bills, then, were 90,555,83.
Yes.
And the deductible was 900; correcté
Per year?
I don't know. You have it there as 900,

Let me look over here.

°© » o » o »

And 650 of that, it looks like it's attributable to
the second one.

A. Correct.
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Q. S0 the deductible arising out of the accident is 2507

A, Yes,

Q. And then you‘gave amount paid was 50,076.29, against
the amount allowed, was 51,000, leaving a co-pay
responsibility of $425, plus Mr. Holt's portion of 2,521.80;
is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. So his out-of-pocket expense for the treatment
related to the accident was $425 co-pay, and then the balance
due of 2,521.80,

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. He was hospitalized about a year and a half
later; right? September?

A. Actually, a year, almost, to the day.

Q Was i1t on the date? Okay.

A, Uh~huh.

o] And that was depression resulting from this, and then
Mr. Holt tried to take his life, tragically.

A, He was struggling that first year. It was very
difficult for him.

Q. Okay. And same analysis here. The amount billed was
56,517.50. The discount was 7,926. The allowed billed
amount was 39,232.57. Not payable was 9,649.67. His

deductible for this second hospitalization a year later was
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5650.

A, Correct,

Q. And paid was 37,166.50. That's the amount the
insurance paid. The only allowed bills was 39. So his
non-reimbursed portion was the 650 deductible and the
2,206.07; correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Assuming the Court -- and I don't know that the Court
will -- there's a whole separate analysis and issue as to
whether the secondary hospitalization applies o£ not, I
don't know.. I don't think there's a Nevada case that speaks
to that. We're kind of in no man's land, if you will.

A. Uh~huh.

Q. But, as I read this, totally, then, from the
accident-related treatment, and the secondary depression and
tragic attempt at his life, the out-of-pocket is 4,727.87, in
an amount he still owes, or owed, and then his co-pay is 425.
Am I reading that right?

A. Correct. Yes.

Q. So you would add 4,787.27, plus 425. Okay. And then
you're also adding back in the civil PI lawyer fees of a
third, and then asking for total out-of-pocket of 30,152.

A. That's correct.

Q. So 24,999.75, for the lawyer fees.

63

APP.0103



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

13

20

21

22

23

24

A. Yes,
Q. And as f understand it, there was 50,000 recovered
from Mr, Nied's insurance.
A, That's correct.
Q. And then 25 on the UIM portion.
A, Yes, Under-insured motorist.
MR. VILORIA: Your Honor, could we --
THE COURT: Any objection, Mr. Naughton, to marking
and moving into evidence what we'll call Exhibit 17
MR. NAUGHTON: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right. Then it will be so marked and
admitted.
(Exhibit 1 was marked for
identification and admitted into
evidencef)
MR. VILORIA: It looks exactly the same.
No objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Please approach the clerk.
MR. VILORIA: Ma'am, that's all I have. And thank
you.
And I'm sorry for your pain and your suffering.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
If I may make an additional comment?

THE COURT: Well, let Mr. Naughton ask a question.
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THE WITNESS: Okay,

THE COURT: If there's anything in résponse to what
yoﬁ just heard.

MR. NAUGHTON: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All rxight. Since, Mrs. Holt, the
Court -- you're classified as a victim, being a parent of
somebody injured, so you can tell the Court how this crime
affected you, if that's what you wanted to address.

THE WITNESS: Well, I wanted to speak to the fact
that there was discussion with regard to the lost wages.

And the reason why that was not noted is because
Patrick's employer was very supportive, and continued to pay
him wages during the incident and while he was unable to
work. So that's why that was not noted there.

I would also ask for consideration for the ongoing
medical treatment that is necessary for those out-of-network

providers that he has to see.

He is dealing with a number of neurological issues at

this time, and we're trying to help him be able to deal with
that so that he functions in a more normal state.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, ma'am.
THE WITNESS: Okay. And then to address the fact of

what has happened.

First of all, I want to say how grateful I am for
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Tyler's apology.

I can’t imagine what you're feeling, and my heart
goes out to you, too.

The thing I have a problem with, Tyler, is that you
left the scene of the accident. I don't know why you did
that. My son could have died.

But, again, I've made mistakes in my life, and I'm so
thankful that I've learned from them. And it's almost as if
there is a silver lining in this cloud. And I'm thankful to
see you're getting your life together. And that's my desire
for you.

But I also want you to understand, Tyler, we all have
to face consequences for our actions. And know that I'm
going to pray for you,

You know, it's been difficult for my son, for my
daughter-in-law, and his three children. They ended up
losing their home that they were living in. There's been a
lot of financial setback.

But through it all, vyou know, Patrick maintains a
very positive attitude. He has days when he's not. But we
all try to deal with that, and encourage him to remember,
"Hey, you're still alive."

Even though, when we were at the hospital, the trauma

surgeon gave us an indication that there was no hope for him.
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And that was while he was still in the coma. And that was
not going to be accepted. So we worked through this together
as a family. And with the help of the support through the
State, through the police, through the Victims of Crime,
we've been able to overcome, step by step.

| And I'm not going to speak to what Patrick is going
through, because he is going to speak to that. But he still
has issues that he's trying to deal with. And T know we're
going to make it.

So I thank you for today, and allowing this matter to
be heard.

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am. You may step down.

{(Witness excused.)

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Naughton, we're going to
be taking a comfort-break recess here in a little while, but
let's please let the Court hear from Patrick's wife,
apparently Andria Holt.

MR. NAUGHTON: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

| (Witness sworn,)

THE COURT: Good afternoon, Mrs. Holt.

THE WITNESS: Good afternoon.

THE COURT: You heard what I stated to your

mother~in-law. Please make yourself comfortable, speak into
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the microphone, and state your name.
THE WITNESS: My name is Andria Holt.
THE COURT: .Mr. Naughton, please proceed.
MR. NAUGHTON: Thank you.
ANDRIA HOLT,
called as a witness on behalf of the State,
first having been duly sworn,
was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. NAUGHTON:
Q. Mrs. Holt, could I also have you please spell your
name .
A. A-n~d~r-i-a. Last name is H-o-1l-t.
Q. Thank you,
Can you please describe your relationship to Patrick
Holt.
A, T am Patrick's wife. We will celebrate almost 20
years together in July, coming up.
Q. Can you please describe to thé Court how this crime
has affected you and your family.
A, I'm not really sure where to start with that.
This has been ever-life-changing for us.
I've lést my best friend. He is still here with me,

but he is very different.
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You'll see when you speak with Patrick in a few
minutes he has a severe brain injury, so his speech is very
slurred, on top of the neurological problems he has, and the
numbness and tingling. He's very different,

We still love each other very much. We were -- the
conversation that Marie just had, when we were getting told
of the future problems that he was going to have, at one
point we were told I was going to have to teach him his
alphabet, how to read and write and speak again. And I
refused to accept that at the time. There was never any
preparation to us as a family, really, as to what it was
really going to be like,

Patrick came home knowing that I was his wife because
he had pictures in his room. But he did not know our
feelings for each other.

I'm sorry.

Let me just take a breath.

THE COURT: Take your time.

THE WITNESS: Patrick still has a hard time with
emotion. With that brain injury in the frontal lobe where it
is, he can't make connections with péople. He doesn't
feel -~ the only emotion he can feel right off the bat was
anger. Like, he had a conversation, and then he had anger.

That was literally the only thing that his mind and his body
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would allow him to feel.

He still to this day cannot shed a tear. His body
won't allow him to,.

I don't mean to get personal, but we still can't be
intimate with each other. Nothing works psychologically ox
physically. The connection of love is not there because he
can't feel those emotions.

He did look at his children very blankly for a very
long time, not knowing who they were, and myself. We're
working really hard to overcome that.

We’re{ at this point, unable to get the proper
counseling that we need because they don't take our
insurance, or we can't find providers that are taking new
people. So Patrick still is unable to get proper care for
things that he needs,

We were told a couple months ago that we may actually
have to go to California to get some things taken care of.

Our oldest daughter will be 18. She had to spend
about a week in West Hills because it was too much for her.

On Mother's Day of last year, which was the one-year
anniversary of the accident, it was too much for Patrick, and
he attempted to take his life.

He then spent about another month, maybe close to a

month and a half, in anothex institution, trying to get some
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more help.

We lost our home in July. We are now staying with
Pat's mom, so we can get stronger and learn to be a family
again,

I would like to address Tyler for just a minute.

I want to thank you for your apology.

I'm so sorry that we are sitting here today.
Accidénts happen every day. My heart hurts for your mother,
because I can't imagine how I would feel if it was my
children, as well.

But I want you to know that I'm not angry. I forgive
you. I hope that you get the help that you need.

I'm sorry.

This could have turned out much -- I've never been
angry. I've been hurt, very hurt. But I can look at you and
tell you I forgive you. Not a lot of people could do that.

I just hope that you get the help that you need.

I understand the mental. I grew up with that kind of
thing. And I understand addiction. I've celebrated 10 years
clean., So you're in the right direction. But you still --
we can never take this away. It's goling to be in our lives
forever; ourselves, and you included,

I can't speak out loud what I would like to see

happen today, because I'm just not there mentally.
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I'm excited for some closure.

I'm sorry. I'm shaking so bad.

I just -~ I don't understand if you -~ why, 1if you're
in that mental state, why you got behind the wheel that
night, But we can't take that back, and we can't -~ there's
no understanding for that. I just hope that you get the help
that you need.

And I thank you for the opportunity to speak today.

THE COURT: Thank you, Mrs. Holt.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: You can step down.

(Witness excused.)

THE COURT: All right. The Court will hear from
Patrick Holt now, please.

(Witness sworn.)

THE COURT: Good afternoon, sir.

THE WITNESS: I just want to say, Tyler, thank you
for your apology. I hope you get the help you need.

I'm sorry this even -- why I'm up here, you know.
But I want to say my life these last 19 months has been
extremely hard, you know. I have -—- I see double. And I am
totally numb on the right side of my body. That's the least
of my problems,_you know,

But I just wanted to let you know. I'm sorry.
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That's all I have.
PATRICK HOLT,
called as a witness on behalf of the State,
first having been duly sworn,
was examined and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. NAUGHTON:

Q.

Do you have any opinion on what you believe a fair

sentence would be in this case?

A. It's hard to say right now. I believe the
one-to-three is a fair sentence. I'm sorry, but, yeah, this
shouldn't be gone un -- un -- I have a hard time thinking of

the words, you know.

THE COURT: You want to say "unpunished."
THE WITNESS: Yeah.

THE COURT: At least that's the Court's

understanding.

much,

do.

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Holt. Thank you very

THE WITNESS: Thank you,
(Witness excused.)

THE COURT: All right. Here's what we're going to

We're going to take a recess. The Court is going to
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give this matter further thought.

I'd like to take Exhibit 1 with me, so i can review
that, as well.

I'1l come out at approximately 1:00 o'clock, in about
20 minutes. And Mr. Nied will be -~ the decision of the
Court will be rendered.

We'll be in recess until 1:00 o'clock.

(Recess.)

THE COURT: Thank you.

Please be seated.

I forgot something.

Please stay seated.

(Judge Breslow left the bench,
and then returned,)

THE COURT: All right. We're back on the record.

The record should reflect the presence of counsel,
the Division, and the defendant.

First, a few preliminary comments, and then the Court
will pronounce its decision here.

As I stated when I first took the bench this morning,
the events here are tragic. Everyone agrees that, if we
could go back in time and rewind, well, things would be a lot
different. But that's not the world we live in, and,

unfortunately, we have to deal with the facts as they are.
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Addressing the Holt family first of all, both the
victim himself, Mr. Holt, his wife, and his mother.

As to Patrick Holt, no one should have this happen to
them. It's physically painful. 1It's emotionally
distressing. And I'm very sorry that it affeéted you in such
profound ways that you wanted to hurt yourself. So I hope,
whatever comes of this, that you have a level of closure
today such that, on this continuing difficult journey that
clearly you have embarked on -- or you were placed on, that
you find some way to find enjoyment in life, and try to
continue to follow the light.

I'1l1 say this, as well. It shouldn't happen to
anybody. But if it's going to happen to you, I want those
two ladies in my corner if anything like this ever happens.
Because it's absolutely remarkable the courage and the
strength and the perseverance that they have found in
themselves to help you and their family and themselves as
they all collectively battle this challenge.

So as to Andria and Maria, thank you for doing what
you're doing to help your family.

Also, thank you for your comments about your
forgiveness of this young man here for what he did.

But just remember to take care of yourselves, too,

because you can't help Patrick and you can't help Patrick and
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Andria's children unless you yourself are healthy and strong.
So don't neglect yourselves just to help others.

As to the defendant, he truly has done just about
everything right these past 19 months. He has stayed clean
and sober, from all accounts. He has received counseling
from mental health professionals. He has addressed the
issues that apparently caused him to seek to -- I'm not sure
1if "self-medicate" is the right word, but use substances to
mask, perhaps, some of the pain, challenges, realities of
young adulthood at a very impressionable time in his life.

Now, in former times, mental health issues were not
spoken of, and they were deemed to be not as serious or
significant or important, as physical, as objective, as
obvious infirmity or illness.

But those days are over. When somebody has mental
health challenges, they need to get help. They didn't ask
for them; they don't want them; they wish they didn't have
the same type of thoughts and types of concerns and inability
to sleep or process information or deal with life's
inevitable stressors. But masking that and neglecting that
leads to bad things, which is, in the Court's estimation, a
lot of what went on here,.

But, by the same token, Mr. Nied, by all accounts,

you are well-ahead of the game. You're doing all the right
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things, The people that know you and care about you, they
see the greatness and the potential for further greatness,
And that's not lost on the Court at all.

So what I have here is, I have to balance.

On the one hand, I have a very, very serious crime.
The Legislature has stated somebody can get up to six years
in prison, Category B,

On the other hand, the lLegislative branch has
similarly said that, even with a crime this serious, proven
or admitted to, diversion is at least an option for the

Court,

And then we have the in-between, which is a suspended

sentence, a prison sentence less than the maximum, or some
combination.

So, balancing all the factors -- the seriousness of
the crime, the effect on the victim, the goals of the
criminal justice system ~- which truly are, protect the
community, number one, and always. Number two, let's
rehabilitate people that commit crimes. Number three,
compensate the viectim. Four, punish the defendant. Five,
deter. Deter this type of conduct, specific and general,
"Specific” means as to that person. Don't do this again.
"General," the Court tends to agree with Mr. Viloria. The

idea is that general deterrence means, if the word gets out
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that Judge So-and-So sentenced Defendant So-and-So to this or
that, well, if you're inclined to criminal activity, you
might think twice. So the sentence, in theory, affects the
general population, or the potential bucket of wrongdoers.

But the studies suggest otherwise.  The studies
suggest that it's the very rare, exceptional case fhaf
somebody who is inclined to criminal activity stops to think
for a minute about what the legal consequences of this act at
this time in this jurisdiction would be. The studies don't
show that.

They show they act on impulse, they act on all kinds
of factors and criteria, virtually none of which is because
they've heard what the potential consequences might be here
versus somewhere else,.

But the other goals are valid: specific deterrence,
rehabilitation, protect thé community, punishment.

So here's what the Court is going to do.

Thé Court is not opting for diversion.

While I am not suggesting the Court is not sincerely
and deeply impressed with the positive steps that Mr. Nied
has made, the seriousness of the crime, the events of that
day and other factors convince the Court that that's not the
right approach.

Nor, however, is a prison sentence appropriate, in
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the Court's estimation.

Mr. Nied, you're not going to prison today.

And I say that with full understanding and respect of
the fact that the State of Nevada District Attorney's Office
argues for prison. Not the maximum, but essentially the
minimufi term of prison, three years, eligible for parole
after a year. The Division recommended that. And the victim
himself indicated that he would find that fair.

| I'm not in any way attempting to diminish the effect
that those three recommendations have had on the Court. T
think they're justified, they're heartfelt. I could impose
that sentence here and believe that justice had been served.
But I want to serve it just a little differently.

So, Mr. Nied -- well, let me ask you this first.

Mr. Viloria, is there any legal cause why your client should
not be sentenced?

MR. VILORIA: I know of none, Your Honor. Other than
the Court may want to create a record with respect to the 213
issue and the Blankenship issue,

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

With respect to Blankenship, the Court has reviewed
the Division's probation eligibility matrix, and has
considered it, notwithstanding the concerns and objections of

the defense. However, because I am placing the defendant on
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probation, the defense can decide whether it wants to create
a legal challenge as a result of that.

I don't see the infirmity -- I understand the
argument. I don't see the infirmity based on the other
objective criteria embedded in the matrix that the Court has
reviewed and believes are fact-based.

I can tell you in some cases I review them and give
them a high level of impact on the Court's ultimate
determination; some, a lower level. In this cése, I have
reviewed it, and I'm pivoting from the ultimate conclusion of
the Division, or at least recommendation. So that's my
decision. TI've relied on it, but the ultimate determination
of the Court was not to follow it.

MR, VILORIA: Your Honor, I think, as long as the
Court expresses -- as the judge did in Blankenship -- that
its sentencing was not predicated on the matrix or the PSP,
that 1t was the other factors in the case, there's no issue
on a review,

THE COURT: Well, I don't want to say something
merely because for somebody reviewing on appeal it will make
it easier,

MR, VILORIA: I understand.

THE COURT: I'm going to say it the way -- I'm going

to call it the way I see it,
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And the way I see it is, I've reviewed it, I've
considered it, and I'm pivoting from the ultimate
recommendation. Now, whether somebody wants to say that that
means I considered it impermissibly, that's up to them. If
somebody else thinks that it's no harm, no foul, that's up to
them. I don't know what is going to happen. Because I don't
want to set the tempo in this case for future cases. I still
have to give that further thought.

But what I am going to say is, I've reviewed it. I'm
not prepared to say I'm not relying on it. But I am prepared
to say I'm not following the ultimate recommendation.

So, other than that, is there any objection to me
sentencing Mr. Nied at this time?

MR. VILORIA: I know of no other legal grounds, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you very much.

Mr. Nied, you're sentenced to five years in prison,
eligible for parole after two. So 24 to 60 months. That
sentence is suspended., You're placed on probation for a
fixed period of time -- not a variable period of time; a
fixed period of time -- of five years.

Now, there are several important special conditions
of your probation. Listen carefully, because this applies to

you.
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Number one: You are to serve 30 days in the Washoe
County Jail., Not today. You can defer this -~ not ecan --
I'm deferring this to a report date in the Washoe County Jail
of July lst. You are to be released on July 30th. I want
you to report no later than 11:00 a.m. on July 1st.

The Court's thinking there is, number one: I don't
want to interfere with his current university semester.

Number two: Confining you during the summer when
it's glorious here is, in part, to remind you of the
seriousness of the crime here, and also to remind you as well
that whatever you do while on probation, or whatever you do
once this case is over, you do not want to go back to that

place ever, and you do not want to go back to -- go to the --

any prison in Nevada.

80 30 days Washoe County Jail. Report no later than
11:00 a.m. on July 1st.

Second special condition of your probation: No
drugs, no alcohol, no marijuana, unless prescribed by a

licensed professional.

Number three: Warrantless search and seizure. Which
means, Mr. Nied, that during the five years of your
probation, day or night, without a warrant, the Division of
Parole and Probation, your supervising officer or any agent

of the Division, can knock on your door, wherever you're
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living -- dorm, an apartment, a house, an RV, a motor home,
it doesn't matter -- and you have to let them in without a
warrant. They can search your home, your car, areas under
your control for any evidence that you're violating the terms
of your probation.

So, by all means, let them in, and, by all means,
make sure you're in compliance with the terms of your
probation,

Next special condition of your probation: At all
times during your probation you're either working, looking
for work, going to school, or getting trained. In other
words, you can't have any hanging-out downtime. That doesn't
mean, you know, you can't be between jobs, looking for a new
job. You're not in violation of the terms of your probation
if that happens. But if you take three months off, don't do
anything, well, then bad things can happen. You get idle
tiﬁe, and, you know, you might turn to something that you
know you shouldn't be. So you have to be doing something
productive with your life during the five years of your
probation.

Number six -- and, by the way, because 1f you
stumble, if you stumble on the terms of your probation ~- I
don't mean a minor toast-up; I mean you fall down, and you

come back to me -~ then the State or the Division will ask
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the Court to revoke your probation and send you to prison for
five years. So you want to comply as best you can
completely with the terms of your probation.

In you have a small stumble, though, I'm giving the
Division the authority, without having to come back to court,
to order you to house arrest, home confinement, for up to 90
days.

Sc if you, again, have a minor noncompliance issue
that doesn't rise to the level where anyone is asking you to
come back here to be revoked, the Division officer, without
asking me for an order, can require you to have house arrest
for up to 90 days. But you're not even going to get there
because you're going to be in'cdmpliance.

'Next: If they do a house visit or a work visit or a
car visit, they can check your cell phone or computer during
these five years for any evidence that you're not in
compliance with the terms of your probation.

So, again, don't think that, if you're texting
somebody to buy drugs, for example, that they won't know
about it, because they will. But that's not going to apply
to you.

And then, finally, I want you to continue with youxr
mental health counseling until your supervising officer and

Mr. Rubenstein =-- Rubenstein?
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MR. VILORIA: Yes, Your Honor. Rubenstein.

THE COURT: -~ Rubenstein believe that you've reached
the point where you're no longer benefitting from that or any
other level of mental‘health counseling.,

You know, I don't know if that means that, come March
3lst of this year, if they'll say, "He's good to go. I mean,
he's as good as he is ‘going to be, and the rest of this is
just now not really needed."

If it comes to that, well, you're good. You're good
for your life. You're good for complying with the terms of
your probation.

On the other hand, if, in‘collaboration with your
supervising Afficer and your attending therapist, they
believe that, "You know what? Once a month from now until
infinity, and then beyond," that you keep going until at
least your probation ends; and then, after that, it's up to
you, you decide whether that's something that you want to do.

Now, you have ~-- as I understand it, Officer, Ffive
days credit for time served?

MR. EM: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

So you get five days credit for time served. But,
you know, like with the rest of this, at 555 or 105, it's a

big "So what?" as long as you're in compliance with the terms
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of your probation, because that five days only matters if
you're incarcerated in the Nevada Department of Corrections.
Then yoﬁ'll do not two to five years, you will do two minus
five days to six years minus five days, and you're already
having a bad day if we get to that point in time. Do you
understand that?

Restitution. Now, this is the amount that the Court
is going to order, as part of your judgment, to be reimbursed
to the defendant -- excuse me -- to the victim, Mr. Patrick
Holt.

When it comes to restitution, it's not mathematical
certainty that's required. I don't have to have every
receipt, every bill, every piece of evidence that exisés,
tending to reflect how much something costs.

On the other hand, I can't rely on highly unreliable
or unpalpable evidence. It has to be pretty clear that it's
accurate, and it is what it purports to show.

There are a lot of ways to approach that. But taking
into account the information embedded in the PSI -- the
presentence investigation report -- plus the testimony of
Patrick's mother, Maria Holt, plus the summary spreadsheet or
the summary that's embedded in the PSI, plus Exhibit 1, it
appears to the Court -- and I will order as restitution --

$463,825.59,
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It's an enormous number. It's for purposes of
whether some, most or all of it ever gets paid, that's an
unknown to the Court. But I certainly recognize it's a large
number, and larger than the defense argued for.

What I can say -- and, Mr. Nied, we don't put people
in jail or prison for not having money. We don't put them in

prison for not being able to pay restitution that they don't

" have.

But as I've already ordered as part of your terms of
your probation, you're working or going to school or training
for a vocation, so, you know, good-faith effort is what we're
looking for here. Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I think I've checked the boxes on what I
wanted to say. But if I've missed something or if I'm
unclear, let me hear first from Mr. Naughton, on behalf of
the State.

MR. NAUGHTON: Your Honor, I didn't hear that the
Court imposed the administrative assessments in this case.

THE COURT: Thank you.

So we have a few fines and fees I want to impose,

A $25 mandatory administrative assessment, $3
mandatory genetic-marker fee, $150 DNA fee. Fine of $1,000.

I'1ll impose that.
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MR. NAUGHTON: Your Honor, I believe the statute in
this case, the minimum is a $2,000 fine.

THE COURT: It's two? I thought it was one.

So I'm imposing the statutory minimum, then, of
$2,000 fine.

What else, Mr. Naughton?

MR. NAUGHTON: Your Honor, the defendant's blood was
tested in this case, so we'd request the $60 for the chemical
or drug -~

THE COURT: It was tested?

MR. NAUGHTON: It was, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sixty-dollar chemical or drug-analysis
fee.

MR. NAUGHTON: Nothing further from the State, Your
Honor,

THE COURT: Thank you.

How about from the Division?

MR. EM: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

Anything else from the defense?

MR. VILORIA: Your Honor, I just don't understand the
Court's calculation.

As I understand it on the restitution, the total

amount that was actually billed is 277,503.43. That's what
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was billed in actuality, and paid for by the carrier.

So I don't understand how the Court arrives at its
400-plus-thousand number. But I'll take that issue on
appeal.

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

Anything else from the defense?

MR, VILORIA: No.

THE COURT: All right. I want to wish everyone good
luck going forward. I hope people can do their best to move
past this and have a level of closure.

We'll be in recess.

(Recess.)
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STATE OF NEVADA )

COUNTY OF WASHOL )

I, ISOLDE ZIHN, a Certified Shorthand Reporter of the
Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in and
for the County of Washoe, do hereby certify:

That I was present in Department 8 of the
above-entitled court on Wednesday, January 16, 2019, at the
hour of 11:00 a.m. of said day, and took verbatim stenotype
notes of the proceedings had upon the matter of THE STATE OF
NEVADA, Plaintiff, versus TYLER NIED, Defendant, Case No,
CR18-1142, and thereafter reduced to writing by means of
computer-assisted transcription as herein appears;

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages 1
through 90, all inclusive, contains a full, true and complete
transcript of my said stenotype notes, and is a full, true
and correct record of the proceedings had at said time and
place.

Dated at Reno, Nevada, this 11th day of February,

2019.

/s/ Isolde Zihn

Isolde Zihn, CCR #87
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CODE 2670

IN THE SEGOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT GOURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

STATE OF NEVADA,

Vs,

TYLER GHASE NIED,

FILED
Electronically
CR18-1142
2019-01-17 12:16:81 PM

Jacoluetine Bryent
Clerk of the Co?;rt

Transaction # 707p277

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

Case No. CR18-1142

Plaintiff,
Dept, No, 8

' Defendant.
/

Substantial Bodily Harm to Another Person, a violation of NRS 484B.653(6), a category B
felony, as charged in the Amended Information. The Defendant is sentenced to a term of
imprisonment in the Nevada Department of Corrections. Execution of the sentence Is

suspended and the Defendant is hereby admitted to probation for a fixed term of Five (5)

years under the following conditions:

A. General:
: 1.

ORDER ADMITTING DEFENDANT TO PROBATION
AND FIXING THE TERMS THEREOF

The Defendant Is guilty of the crime of Reckless Driving Resulting in Death or

Reporting: The Defendant shall report in person to the Division of Parole
and Probation as instructed by the Division or its agent. Defendant is
required to submit a written report each month on forms supplied by the
Division. This report shall be true and correct In all aspects.

Residence: Defendant shall not change his place of residence without first
obtalning permission from the Divislon of Parole and Probation, in each
instance,

Intoxicants: Defendant shall not consume any alcoholic beverages
whatsoever, Upon order of the Division of Parole and Probation or its agent,

APP.0131




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

10,
11

12,

Defendant shall submit to a medically recognized test for blood/breath
alcohol content,

Controlled Substances: Defendant shall not use, purchase or possess any
illegal drugs, or any prescription drugs, unless first prescribed by a licensed
medical professional. Defendant shall immediately notify the Division of
Parole and Probation of any prescription recelved. Defendant shall submit to
drug testing as required by the Division or its agent.

Weapons: Defendant shall not possess, have access to, ot have under his
control, any type of weapon.

Search: Defendant shall submit his person, property, place of residence,
vehicle or areas under his control to search Including electronic surveillance
or monitoring of his location, at any time, with or without a search warrant or
warrant of arrest, for evidence of a crime or violation of probation by the
Division of Parole and Probation or its agent.

Associates; Defendant must have prior approval by the Division of Parole
and Probation to assoclate with any person convicted of a felony, or any
person on probation or parole supervision. Defendant shall not have any
contact with persons confined in a correctional institution unless specific
written permission has been granted by the Division of Parole and Probation
and the correctional institution.

Directives and Conduct: Defendant shall follow the directives of the
Division of Parole and Probation and his conduct shall justify the opportunity
granted to him by this community supervision,

Laws: Defendant shall comply with all municipal, county, state, and federal
laws and ordinances.

Out-of-State Travel: Defendant shall not leave the state without first
obtaining written permission from the Division of Parole and Probation.
Employment/Program: Defendant shall seek and maintain legal
employment, or maintain a program approved by the Division of Parole and
Probation and not change such employment or program without first
obtaining permission. All terminatlons of employment or program must be
immediately reported to the Division. .

Financial Obligation: Defendant shall pay administrative assessment fees,
fines and restitution as ordered in the special conditions of probation. Any
excess monies paid will be applied to any other outstanding fees, fines
and/or restitution, even if itis discovered after Defendant’s discharge.

B. Special Gonditions as follows:

1.

The Defendant shall serve Thirty (30) days in the Washoe County Detentlon
Facility. Defendant shall self-surrender on July 1, 2019, no later than 11:00
a.m. and shall serve 30 days flat time, with no good time/work time credit.
The Defendant shall abstain from the use, possession or gontrol of any
controlled substances, alcohol, and marijuana during hls term of probation,
unless prescribed by a licensed medical professional;
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3. Defendant shall submit his person, place of residence, vehicle or areas unded
his control to search at any time, with or without a search warrant or warrant
of arrest, for evidence of a crime or violation of probation by the Divislon of
Parole and Probation or its agent:

4, The Defendant shall maintain steady and gainful employment, actively seek
gainful employment if not employed, and/or maintain an educational and/or
vocational program as approved by the Division of Parole and Probation
during his term of probation;

5, The Defendant shall submit to random substance abuse testing as deemed
appropriate by the Division of Parole and Probation to determine whether he
is using a controlled substance:

6. The Defendant shall participate in a mental health counseling program, at his
own expense, as approved by the Division of Parole and Probation until
discharged by agreement of hoth his supervising officer and counselor;

7. Defendant shall submit his computer, computer hard drive, cellular phone or
any other electronic devices under his control to search and selzure at any
time by any parole and probation officer, with ot without a warrant, for review
of soclal media and/or texting as evidence of a crime or violation of probation

8. If deemed necessary by the supervising officer, the Defendant shall submit to
the residentlal confinement/electronic monitoring program administered by
the Division of Parole and Probation, at the Defendant's own expense, for a
period not to exceed 90 days. '

9, The Defendant shall pay restitution ($463,825.59), a fine ($2000.00), the
administrative assessment fees ($3.00 and $26.00), the Chemical Analysis
Fee ($60.00) and the DNA analysis fee ($150.00) as ordered In the
Judgment of Conviction.

Further, the Defendant is advised that the Court reserves the right to modify these

terms of Probation at any time and as permitted by law.

Dated this __{"]__ day of January, 201.
NUNG PRO TUNC to the 16% day of January, 2019.

DISTRICT JUDGE
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STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
Vs, Case No. CR18-1142
TYLER CHASE NIED, Dept. No. 8
Defendant.

IN'THE SEGOND JUDICIAL DISTRIGT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

/

being shown by Defendant as to why judgment should not be pronounced agalnst him,

the Court rendered judgment as follows:

Death or Substantial Bodily Harm to Another Person, a violation of NRS 484B.653(6), a .
category B felony, as charged in the Amended Information, and that he be punished by
imprisonment in the Nevada Department of Corrections for a minimum term of Twenty-
Four (24) months to a maximum term of Sixty (60) months, with Five (5) days credit for
time served and by payment of restitution in the amount of Four Hundred Sixty-Three
Thousand, Eight Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars and Fifty-Nine Cents ($463,825.59) and
payment of a fine in the amount of Two Thousand Dollars ($2000.00). It'is further
ordered that the sentence Is suspended, and the Defendant is placed on probation for the
fixed period of time of Five (5) years, with special conditions imposed. Special conditions

JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
The Defendant, having entered a plea of guilty, and no sufficient cause

Tyler Chase Nied is guilty of the crime of Reckless Driving Resulting in
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of probation are as outlined in the Order Admitting Defendant to Probation and F ixing the
Terms Thereof,

It is further ordered as a condition of probation Defendant shall serve Thirty
(30) days flat time in the Washoe County Detention Facility, and shall self-surrender to
the Washoe County Detention Facility on July 1, 2019, no later than 11:00 a.m.

It Is further ordered that the Defendant shall pay the statutory Twenty-Five
Dollar ($25.00) administrative assessment fee, a Sixty Dollar ($60.00) chemical/drug
analysis fee, the Three Dollar ($3.00) administrative assessment fee for obtaining a
biological specimen and conducting a genetic marker analysis, the One Hundred Fifty
Dollar ($160.00) DNA testing fee, and submit to a DNA analysis to determine the
presence of genetic markers, if not previously ordered,

Any fine, fee or administrative assessment imposed upon the Defendant
today, as reflected In this Judgment of Conviction constitutes a lien, as defined in Nevada
Revised Statutes (NRS 176.275), Should the Defendant not pay these fines, fees or
assessments, collection efforts may be undertaken against him,

Dated this "1 day of January, 2010,
NUNGC PRO TUNG to the 16" day of January, 2019,

ey

DISTRICTUUDGE
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Thomas E, Viloria, Hsq,
Novada Bar No, 003833

P,0. Box 62

Reno, NV 89504

(775) 284-8888
Attorney for Defendant

VILORITA, OLIPHANT, OSTER & AMAN L.L.P,

o
THE STATE OF NEVADA
Plaintiff, Case No, CR18-1142
Vs, Dept, No, 8
TYLER CHASE NIED,
Defendant.

NOTICE OF APPEAL TQ SUPREME COURT

2019,
111
/11
111
111
1]
11
11
111

1019083

TO: THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff; and
TO:  The Washoe County Disirict Attorney’s Office, its counsel;

1.
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IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Defendant TYLER CHASE NIED, hereby appeals to
the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada from the Judgment of Conviction filed Jawary 17,
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ATTIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.
DATED this_/ / 7//dbay of Februaty, 2019,
FAHRENDORF, VILORIA,
OLIPHANT & OSTER L.L.P,
/67 / M. ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
By:
Thomas E. Viloria, Esq,
Mlod Deaft Nollee of Appen! doc,doc Do
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that T am an employeé of the law firm of VILORIA,

OLIPHANT, OSTER & AMAN L.L.P., and that on the date shown below, I caused service of g

true and correct copy of the attached:

NOTICE OF APPEAL

to be completed by electronic service upon elestronjeally filing the within document with the
Second Judicial District Court addressed to:

KEVIN NAUGHTON, ESQ, for STATE OF NEVADA
D1V. OF PAROLE & PROBATION

(775} 284-3838
REND, NEVADA 89504

COUNSELORS ATLAW
Office: (775} 284-8888 Fox-

ATIORNEYS AND

P.O.BOX 62~
327 CALIFORNIA AVENUE~ RENO, NEVADA 89509

VILORIA,
OLPHANT,
QOSTER &
AMAN LLP.
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DATED this / 4@”&1}' of February, 2019,

Employee of Viloria, Oliphant, Oster & Aman L.L.P,
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

The undersigned certifies that they are an employee of Thomas E. Viloria,
Esq., and that on the i/lfiay of June 2019, they served a true and correct copy of
the foregoing document upon opposing counsel, as set forth below, by way of the
court’s E-flex filing system and U.S. mail:

Appellate Division

WASHOE COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY’S OFFICE

1 South Sierra Street, 7™ Floor

Reno, NV 89501
Attorney for Respondent

N =

Katelyn Wolf, Legal Assistant




